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WATTA Holding Berhad

notICe oF tWentY seConD AnnUAL GeneRAL MeetInG

notICe Is HeReBY GIVen tHAt the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Penthouse @ 
Level 16, The Federal Kuala Lumpur, 35 Jalan Bukit Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 31 March 2017 at 9.00 a.m. or at 
any adjournment thereof to transact the following business:-

oRDInARY BUsIness

1 To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 September 2016 and 
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect the following Directors who retire by rotation pursuant to Article 106 of the Company’s 
Articles of Association:-

2.1 Gan Leng Swee; (Resolution 1)

2.2 Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid; and (Resolution 2)

2.3 Loo Sooi Guan. (Resolution 3)

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RM144,000-00 in respect of the financial year ended 
30 September 2016.

(Resolution 4)

4. To re-appoint Messrs UHY as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their 
remuneration.

(Resolution 5)

sPeCIAL BUsIness

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following Ordinary Resolutions:-

5. RetentIon oF GAn LenG sWee As InDePenDent DIReCtoR

“THAT subject to the passing of Resolution 1, in accordance with the Malaysian Code on 
Corporate Governance 2012 (“MCCG 2012”), Gan Leng Swee be and is hereby retained as 
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and be designated as such until 
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting, subject to the provisions of the relevant 
regulatory authorities.”

(Resolution 6)

6. RetentIon oF HJ AHMAD BIn DARUs As InDePenDent DIReCtoR

“THAT in accordance with the MCCG 2012, Hj Ahmad Bin Darus be and is hereby retained 
as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and be designated as such until the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting, subject to the provisions of the relevant regulatory 
authorities.” 

(Resolution 7)

7. AUtHoRItY FoR DIReCtoRs to IssUe sHARes

“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, and subject to the Main Market 
Listing Requirements (“Listing Requirements”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 
Securities”) and the approvals of the relevant governmental and/or regulatory authorities (if any), 
the Directors be and are hereby empowered to issue new shares in the Company at any time, to 
such person or persons, upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors 
may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares issued 
pursuant to this resolution does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the nominal value of the total 
issued and paid-up share capital of the Company at the time of issue AND THAT the Directors 
be and are also empowered to obtain the approval from Bursa Securities for the listing of and 
quotation for the additional shares so issued AND THAT such authority shall continue to be in 
force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company.”

(Resolution 8)

8. PRoPoseD ReneWAL oF sHAReHoLDeRs’ MAnDAte AnD PRoPoseD neW 
sHAReHoLDeRs’ MAnDAte FoR ReCURRent ReLAteD PARtY tRAnsACtIons oF A 
ReVenUe oR tRADInG nAtURe (“PRoPoseD sHAReHoLDeRs’ MAnDAte”)

“THAT subject always to the provisions of the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, approval 
be and is hereby given to the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into Recurrent Related 
Party Transactions of a revenue or trading nature as stated in Section 2.5 of the Circular to 
Shareholders dated 26 January 2017 with the specified classes of related parties mentioned 
therein which are necessary for the Group’s day-to-day operations and are carried out in the 
ordinary course of business and are on normal commercial terms which are not more favourable 
to the related parties than those generally available to the public and are not detrimental to the 
minority shareholders of the Company.

(Resolution 9)



3

Annual Report 2016

notICe oF tWentY seConD AnnUAL GeneRAL MeetInG (Cont’D)

THAT the approval shall continue to be in force until:-

(i) the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following the AGM at which such mandate 
was passed, at which time it will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the AGM whereby 
the authority is renewed;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required to be held 
pursuant to Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”) (but must not extend to 
such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 143(2) of the Act); or

(iii) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in general meeting,

whichever is the earlier.

AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all 
such acts and things (including executing all such documents as may be required) as they may 
consider expedient or necessary or in the interests of the Company to give effect to the Proposed 
Shareholders’ Mandate described in the Circular.”

9. To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given in accordance with the 
Act and the Company’s Articles of Association.

By Order of the Board
WAttA HoLDInG BeRHAD

YeoH CHonG KeAt (MIA 2736)
tAn FonG sHIAn (MAICsA 7023187)
Company Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur
26 January 2017

Notes:

(1) Only a depositor whose name appears in the Company’s Record of Depositors as at 24 March 2017 shall be regarded as a 
member and entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

(2) A member may appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote instead of him/her at the meeting. If the member appoints 
two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he/she specifies the proportion of his/her holdings to be represented 
by each proxy. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1) of the 
Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

(3) Where a member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it may 
appoint up to two (2) proxies in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing 
to the credit of the said securities account.

(4) Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central 
Depositories) Act 1991 which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) securities 
account (“Omnibus Account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint 
in respect of each Omnibus Account it holds.

(5) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in 
writing or if the appointer is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

(6) The original instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or 
a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Suite 
11.1A, Level 11, Menara Weld, 76 Jalan Raja Chulan, 50200 Kuala Lumpur not less than twenty-four (24) hours before the 
time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting.

(7) The Personal Data Protection Act 2010, which regulates the processing of personal data in commercial transactions, 
applies to the Company. By providing to us your personal data which may include your name, contact details and mailing 
address, you hereby consent, agree and authorise the processing and/ or disclosure of any personal data of or relating 
to you for the purposes of issuing the notice of this meeting and convening the meeting, including but not limited to 
preparation and compilation of documents and other matters, whether or not supplied by you. You further confirm to 
have obtained the consent, agreement and authorisation of all persons whose personal data you have disclosed and/ or 
processed in connection with the foregoing.
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notICe oF tWentY seConD AnnUAL GeneRAL MeetInG (Cont’D)

explanatory notes on special Business: 

1. Resolution 6

In observing the recommendation in relation to the tenure of an independent director as prescribed by Malaysian Code 
on Corporate Governance 2012 (“MCCG 2012”), the Board of Directors of the Company, after having assessed the 
independence of Gan Leng Swee, considers him to be independent and recommends that Gan Leng Swee be retained 
as Independent Director of the Company. The details of his assessment and justifications are contained in the Statement 
Accompanying Notice of Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

2. Resolution 7

In observing the recommendation in relation to the tenure of an independent director as prescribed by MCCG 2012, the 
Board of Directors of the Company, after having assessed the independence of Hj Ahmad Bin Darus, considers him to be 
independent and recommends that Hj Ahmad Bin Darus be retained as Independent Director of the Company. The details 
of his assessment and justifications are contained in the Statement Accompanying Notice of AGM.

3. Resolution 8

This proposed resolution, if passed, will renew the authority given to the Directors of the Company to issue and allot new 
shares in the Company at any time, to such person or persons, upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes 
as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit (“General Mandate”), provided that the number of shares 
issued pursuant to this General Mandate, when aggregated with the nominal value of any such shares issued during the 
preceding twelve (12) months, does not exceed 10% of the nominal value of the total issued share capital of the Company 
at the time of issue. This renewed General Mandate, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the 
conclusion of the next AGM of the Company.

The General Mandate approved in the preceding year 2016 which was not exercised by the Company during the year, will 
expire at the forthcoming Twenty Second AGM of the Company. 

With this renewed General Mandate, the Company will be able to raise funds expeditiously for the purpose of funding 
future investment, working capital and/or acquisition(s) without having to convene a general meeting to seek shareholders’ 
approval when such opportunities or needs arises.

4. Resolution 9

This proposed resolution, if passed, will authorise the Company and/or its subsidiaries to enter into recurrent related 
party transactions of a revenue or trading nature, particulars of which are as set out in the Circular to Shareholders of the 
Company dated 26 January 2017 despatched together with the Annual Report. This authority, unless revoked or varied by 
the Company in a general meeting, will expire at the next AGM of the Company.
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stAteMent ACCoMPAnYInG notICe oF AnnUAL GeneRAL MeetInG

Pursuant to Article 106 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the following Directors are standing for re-election at the 
Twenty Second Annual General Meeting of the Company:- 

(a) Gan Leng Swee; 

(b) Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid; and

(c) Loo Sooi Guan. 

Details of the abovenamed Directors are set out in the Directors’ Profile Section of this Annual Report. 

RetentIon oF GAn LenG sWee As InDePenDent DIReCtoR

The Board of Directors of the Company, after having assessed the independence of Gan Leng Swee, considers him to be 
independent based on amongst others, the following justifications and recommends that Gan Leng Swee be retained as Senior 
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company:-

(i) He has confirmed and declared that he is an Independent Director as defined under Paragraph 1.01 of the Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Securities;

(ii) He does not have any conflict of interest with the Company and has not been entering/is not expected to enter into 
contract(s) especially material contract(s) with the Company and/or its subsidiary companies; 

(iii) He is currently not sitting on the board of any other public and/or private companies having the same nature of business 
as that of the Company and its subsidiary companies; and

(iv) The Board is of the opinion that Gan Leng Swee is an important Senior Independent Non-Executive Director of the Board in 
view of his many years on the Board with incumbent knowledge of the Company and the Group’s activities and corporate 
history and has provided invaluable contributions to the Board in his role as a Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 
and Chairman of both the Nomination Committee and Risk Assessment/Management Committee.

RetentIon oF HJ AHMAD BIn DARUs As InDePenDent DIReCtoR

The Board of Directors of the Company, after having assessed the independence of Tuan Hj Ahmad Bin Darus, considers him 
to be independent based on amongst others, the following justifications and recommends that Tuan Hj Ahmad Bin Darus be 
retained as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company:-

(i) He has confirmed and declared that he is an Independent Director as defined under Paragraph 1.01 of the Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Securities;

(ii) He does not have any conflict of interest with the Company and has not been entering/is not expected to enter into 
contract(s) especially material contract(s) with the Company and/or its subsidiary companies; 

(iii) He is currently not sitting on the board of any other public and/or private companies having the same nature of business 
as that of the Company and its subsidiary companies; and

(iv) The Board is of the opinion that Tuan Hj Ahmad Bin Darus is an important Independent Non-Executive Director of the 
Board in view of his many years on the Board with incumbent knowledge of the Company and the Group’s activities and 
corporate history and has provided invaluable contributions to the Board in his role as an Independent Non-Executive 
Director.
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WATTA Holding Berhad

CoRPoRAte InFoRMAtIon

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Dato’ Lee Foo san
Group Executive Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hj Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz
Group Executive Director

Datin teoh Lian tin
Executive Director

Gan Leng swee
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Hj Ahmad Bin Darus
Independent Non-Executive Director 

Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Lee tak Wing
Independent Non-Executive Director

Loo sooi Guan
Executive Director

AUDIt CoMMIttee

Lee Tak Wing (Chairman)
Gan Leng Swee
Hj Ahmad Bin Darus

noMInAtIon CoMMIttee

Gan Leng Swee (Chairman)
Hj Ahmad Bin Darus
Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid

ReMUneRAtIon CoMMIttee

Hj Ahmad Bin Darus (Chairman)
Dato’ Lee Foo San
Gan Leng Swee

CoMPAnY seCRetARIes

Yeoh Chong Keat (MIA 2736)
Tan Fong Shian (MAICSA 7023187)

ReGIsteReD oFFICe

Suite 11.1A, Level 11
Menara Weld
76, Jalan Raja Chulan
50200 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : (603) 2031 1988
Fax : (603) 2031 9788

sHARe ReGIstRAR

Bina Management (M) Sdn Bhd 
Lot 10, The Highway Centre
Jalan 51/205
46050 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Tel : (603) 7784 3922
Fax : (603) 7784 1988

AUDItoRs

UHY (AF 1411)
Suite 11.05 Level 11 
The Gardens South Tower
Mid Valley City
Lingkaran Syed Putra
59200 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : (603) 2279 3088
Fax : (603) 2279 3099

PRInCIPAL BAnKeRs

AmBank (M) Berhad
Hong Leong Bank Berhad
United Overseas Bank (M) Berhad
Alliance Bank Malaysia Berhad 
Malayan Banking Berhad
Citibank Berhad 

stoCK eXCHAnGe LIstInG

Main Market of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad
Sector : Industrial Products
Stock Name  : WATTA
Stock Code : 7226
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CHAIRMAn’s stAteMent

FInAnCIAL ResULts

The Group recorded a loss of RM1,468,277 on a revenue of 
RM38,880,608. Even though turnover increased marginally 
compared to the previous financial year, the higher loss was 
incurred on the back of unfavourable operating conditions 
which included the impact of the depreciating ringgit to a large 
degree. During the period under review the USD strengthened 
by about 37% and coupled with lead prices also increasing by 
12.5% in US Dollar terms. The automotive battery business 
experienced significant higher cost of sales. 

The loss per share attributable to equity holders was 1.72 sen 
compared to 0.67 sen in 2015. 

Notwithstanding the losses, the Balance Sheet of the Group 
remains strong with total Group Assets as at 30 September 
2016 standing at RM67,765,769.

 
oPeRAtIonAL ReVIeW AnD PRosPeCts 

In the financial year under review the operating environment 
was very challenging and the economic outlook for the next 
year does not appear to be optimistic. We expect the cost 
of importing automotive batteries to continue to be high and 
consequently the automotive battery business will continue to 
be tough and competitive.

For the hand phone servicing business we expect that in 2017 
it will continue to contribute positive results in view of our long 
standing experience in the industry and our wide network in 
Malaysia.

To achieve better performance in 2017, we plan to expand our 
hand phone distribution business.

DIVIDenDs 

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend 
payment for this financial year. 

CoRPoRAte soCIAL ResPonsIBILItY 

Being a responsible corporate citizen is an important 
component of our activities. We continue to lend a helping 
hand to the community at large, especially for the needy 
where we have organized events and activities to bring joy to 
the less fortunate. 

The Group is also committed to continue our efforts to provide 
a safe and healthy working environment for our employees. 

ACKnoWLeDGeMents

On behalf on the Board I wish to extend my gratitude and 
appreciation to our staff, shareholders, suppliers, financiers, 
customers and the authorities for their continued loyalty and 
support. 

Last but not least, my sincere thanks to my fellow Board 
members for their counsel and guidance. 

Dato’ Lee Foo San 
Group Executive Chairman
26 January 2017
 
 

On behalf of the Board of  Directors of 
Watta Holding Berhad, I am pleased 
to present the Annual Report and the 
Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company and the Group for the financial 
year ended 30 September 2016. 



8

WATTA Holding Berhad

DIReCtoRs’ PRoFILe

Dato’ Lee Foo San was appointed to the Board as an Executive Director on 21 May 1998 
and was subsequently appointed as the Group Executive Chairman on 16 October 1998. 
He is a member of the Remuneration Committee and Risk Assessment/Management 
Committee. 

Dato’ Lee is a self-made entrepreneur who has ventured into the business world since 
1989.  In 1998, he ventured into the automotive battery business.  Over the years, he 
has been involved in the telecommunication and travel business and has gained vast 
exposure in the said fields.

Dato’ Lee also sits on the Board of all the Company’s subsidiary companies and several 
other private limited companies. He does not have any other directorships in other public 
companies.

Dato’ Lee is a substantial shareholder of the Company with direct shareholding of 
27,707,730 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each. He is the spouse of Datin Teoh Lian Tin who 
is an Executive Director of the Company. He attended all the five (5) Board of Directors’ 
Meetings of the Company held during the financial year ended 30 September 2016. 

He has no conflict of interest with the Company and had no convictions for any offences, 
other than traffic offences (if any), within the past 5 years nor any public sanction or 
penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

DAto’ Lee Foo sAn
(52 years of age, Malaysian, Male)
Group Executive Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer

Datin Teoh Lian Tin was appointed to the Board on 21 May 1998.  She currently holds the 
position of Group Human Resource and Administration Director. Datin Teoh is the spouse 
of Dato’ Lee Foo San, the Group Executive Chairman and a substantial shareholder of 
the Company.  

Datin Teoh sits on the Board of all the Company’s subsidiary companies and several 
other private limited companies. She does not have any other directorships in other 
public companies.

Datin Teoh has attended four (4) out of the five (5) Board of Directors’ Meetings of the 
Company held during the financial year ended 30 September 2016.

She has no conflict of interest with the Company and had no convictions for any offences, 
other than traffic offences (if any), within the past 5 years nor any public sanction or 
penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

DAtIn teoH LIAn tIn
(49 years of age, Malaysian, 
Female)
Executive Director

Hj Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz was appointed to the Board on 16 October 1998. He holds a 
Bachelor of Economics Degree with honours from University of Malaya in 1977 and a 
Diploma in Marketing. 

Hj Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz was formerly the General Manager of the banking division 
of AmInvestment Bank Berhad and the Founder Member and Vice President of the 
Association of Islamic Banking Malaysia. Apart from the banking industry, his experience 
covers a wide variety of industries including property development and manufacturing.  
Prior to joining the Watta Group he was advisor of Islamic Banking for HSBC Malaysia.

Hj Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz sits on the Board of all the Company’s subsidiary companies.  
He does not have any other directorships in other public companies. 

He has indirect shareholdings of 3,468,800 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the 
Company by virtue of his shareholdings in United Matrix Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 
6A of the Companies Act, 1965. He attended all the five (5) Board of Directors’ Meetings 
of the Company held during the financial year ended 30 September 2016.

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder 
of the Company and has no conflict of interest with the Company. He has not been 
convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic offences (if any) 
nor any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the 
financial year.

HJ ARIFFIn BIn ABDUL AZIZ 
(63 years of age, Malaysian, Male)
Group Executive Director
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Hj Ahmad Bin Darus was appointed to the Board on 16 September 2004.  He is the 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination Committee and Risk Assessment/Management Committee.

Prior to his appointment as Director of Watta Holding Berhad, he had more than 10 years 
of working experience in the management of the financial affairs of corporations which 
he held the positions as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Managing Director. He was the 
CEO of Pernec Telecom Sdn. Bhd. in 1991 and the Managing Director of Alcatel Malaysia 
from 1994 to 2002. At both Pernec Telecom and Alcatel Malaysia, he was primarily 
responsible for the companies’ financial management including budgeting, financial 
planning, company’s audit, tax planning, cash flow management, risks management and 
credit management. He retired from Alcatel Malaysia in 2002 to venture into his own 
business.

Hj Ahmad Bin Darus does not have any other directorships in other public companies. 
He has attended all the five (5) Board of Directors’ Meetings of the Company held during 
the financial year ended 30 September 2016.

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder 
of the Company and has no conflict of interest with the Company. He has not been 
convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic offences (if any) 
nor any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the 
financial year.

HJ AHMAD BIn DARUs
(63 years of age, Malaysian, Male)
Independent Non-Executive 
Director

DIReCtoRs’ PRoFILe (Cont’D)

Mr Gan Leng Swee was appointed to the Board on 16 October 1998. He is the Chairman 
of the Nomination Committee and Risk Assessment/ Management Committee as well as 
a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. He was the Chairman 
of Audit Committee from the date of his appointment as a Director of the Company until 
1 April 2014.

Mr Gan holds a Bachelor of Economics from University of Malaya in 1974.  He began his 
career with Citibank in 1974 and progressed to the position of Assistant Vice President 
for Institutional Banking Group. From 1984 to 1986, he was the Asean Representative for 
Dow MBF Ltd. Hong Kong and concurrently General Manager of MBF Leasing Sdn Bhd. 
Prior to joining Overseas Union Bank, Singapore in 1987 as the head of the Credit Review 
Unit (Audit & Inspection), he was a Senior Credit Manager of Oriental Bank Berhad. From 
1990 to 1991, he was the Dealer’s Representative (Institutional Sales) with G.K. Goh 
(Stockbrokers) Pte. Ltd. He formed his private management consultancy practice named 
Citation Corporate Concepts Pte. Ltd. Singapore from 1991 till 1998. On a contract basis 
from November 1998 to November 1999, he was the Deputy President/Chief Operating 
Officer for Keppel Bank Philippines.

Mr Gan does not have any other directorships in other public/private companies.

Mr Gan has a direct shareholdings of 764,058 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the 
Company. He attended all the five (5) Board of Directors’ Meetings of the Company held 
during the financial year ended 30 September 2016.

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder 
of the Company and has no conflict of interest with the Company. He has not been 
convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic offences (if any) 
nor any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the 
financial year.

GAn LenG sWee 
(66 years of age, Malaysian, Male)
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director
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Mr Loo Sooi Guan was appointed to the Board on 21 May 2013. 

Mr Loo is a Chartered Accountant and a member of Malaysia Institute of Accountants. He 
holds a Bachelor of Business Degree in Accountancy from RMIT University, Melbourne, 
Australia. He joined Watta Group in June 1998 as the Group Financial Controller, 
overseeing the finance department of the Group. He was promoted to Vice President in 
January 2002 where he held the position till 21 May 2013.

During his tenure in Watta Group he gained vast experience in corporate affairs, finance, 
manufacturing, marketing, procurement, logistics and the overall operations of the Watta 
Group. Prior to joining Watta Group, he has worked in several business industries which 
includes property development, manufacturing and oil & gas. He also had working 
experience for several years at BP Australia Limited, Melbourne, Australia.

He is also a director of several subsidiaries in Watta Group.

Mr Loo does not have any other directorships in other public companies. He attended all 
the five (5) Board of Directors’ Meetings of the Company held during the financial year 
ended 30 September 2016.

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder 
of the Company and has no conflict of interest with the Company. He has not been 
convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic offences (if any) 
nor any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the 
financial year.

Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid was appointed to the Board on 14 February 2011. He is a member 
of the Nomination Committee.

Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid is a graduate in Accountancy from Universiti Teknologi Mara in 
1973. He started his career in banking and subsequently moved to telecommunication 
industry. He has attended numerous professional courses and seminars both abroad 
and locally. Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid has held various senior management position in both 
banking and telecommunication industries for the past thirty (30) years.

He currently sits on the Board of Omesti Berhad Group, Omesti Holdings Berhad, 
Diversified Gateway Solutions Berhad, Diversified Gateway Berhad and several other 
private companies. 

He has indirect shareholdings of 3,468,800 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the 
Company by virtue of his shareholdings in United Matrix Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 
6A of the Companies Act, 1965. He attended all the five (5) Board of Directors’ Meetings 
of the Company held during the financial year ended 30 September 2016.

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder 
of the Company and has no conflict of interest with the Company. He has not been 
convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic offences (if any) 
nor any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the 
financial year.

HJ AHMAD BIn KHALID
(66 years of age, Malaysian, Male)
Non-Independent
Non-Executive Director

Loo sooI GUAn 
(52 years of age, Malaysian, Male)
Executive Director

Mr Lee Tak Wing was appointed to the Board and as a member of the Audit Committee on 
14 October 2011. He was appointed as Chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 April 2014.

Mr Lee holds a Diploma in Accounting and Business Studies from Goons College in 1974 
and Diploma in Strategic Marketing Management from Singapore Institute of Management 
in 1991. He attended Wharton School of Business US Executive Program in Hong Kong 
in 1993. He had his first career in the banking industry where he spent 8 years in UMBC 
Bhd. He then moved into commercial sectors where he held various senior positions and 
roles. In 1990, he joined Nokia Mobile in Singapore as Regional Manager responsible for 
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Philippines markets. He was relocated to Hong Kong in 1991 
and promoted to Sales General Manager responsible for China market. In 1996, he was 
relocated back to Malaysia and was promoted as Country Manager. He was appointed 
as Managing Director for Nokia Malaysia in 2003. In 2006, he ventures into consultancy 
services.

Mr Lee does not have any other directorships in other public companies. He attended all 
the five (5) Board of Directors’ Meetings of the Company held during the financial year 
ended 30 September 2016.

He does not have any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of the 
Company and has no conflict of interest with the Company. He has not been convicted of 
any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic offences (if any) nor any public 
sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

Lee tAK WInG
(62 years of age, Malaysian, Male)
Independent Non-Executive 
Director



KeY senIoR MAnAGeMent’s PRoFILe

Loo KWonG YonG
(57 years of age, Malaysian, Male)

Mr Loo Kwong Yong is the Managing Director of Mobile 
Technic Sdn Bhd and SEMS Services Sdn Bhd, wholly-owned 
subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a Master’s Degree in 
Marketing from the University of Stratclyde, Glasglow and is 
an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, 
United Kingdom. He has been in the handphone distribution 
and servicing business for more than 25 years.  He was 
formerly the Managing Director of Cellstar Amtel Sdn Bhd, 
a joint venture company between Cellstar USA and Amtel 
Cellular Malaysia. Cellstar Amtel Sdn Bhd is a subsidiary of 
Amtel Holdings Bhd, a public company listed on the Main 
Market of Bursa Malaysia. Prior to joining the Amtel Holding 
Group, he was also involved in the distribution of mobile 
handphones mainly the distribution of “OKI” mobile phones.  

He does not have any family relationship with any Director 
and/or major shareholder of the Company and has no conflict 
of interest with the Company. He has not been convicted of 
any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic 
offences (if any) nor any public sanction or penalty imposed 
by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

CHAn soH HWA
(54 years of age, Malaysian, Male)

Mr Chan Soh Hwa is the General Manager/Director of Mobile 
Technic Sdn Bhd and SEMS Services Sdn Bhd, wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Both Chan Soh Hwa 
and Loo Kwong Yong started Mobile Technic Sdn Bhd and 
SEMS Services Sdn Bhd.  He has more than 25 years of 
experience in the telecommunications industry in Federal 
Telecommunications and Amtel Communications Sdn Bhd. 
He specialized in handphone project management, system 
design and implementation. 

He was also involved in wireless telecommunication equipment 
project design, integration, implementation and management 
such as Trunked Radio System, Conventional/Auxilliary Radio 
System, and Paging (in H house/public) System, Analog/
Digital Microwave Radio System, Cellular infrastructure and 
Digital Pair-Gain.  Major projects undertaken include those for 
the oil and gas industry in Malaysia such as Petronas, Esso 
and Shell, airports and seaports, Malaysia telecommunication 
companies and nationwide trunked radio system for the 
Ministry of Police in Vietnam.

He does not have any family relationship with any Director 
and/or major shareholder of the Company and has no conflict 
of interest with the Company. He has not been convicted of 
any offences within the past five (5) years other than traffic 
offences (if any) nor any public sanction or penalty imposed 
by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.
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FInAnCIAL HIGHLIGHts & FInAnCIAL InDICAtoRs

       Financial Year ended 30 september

     2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Financial Highlights of Income Statement 
 Items (RM)

Revenue    24,362,630 30,367,823 39,311,673 38,308,018 38,880,608

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, 
  Depreciation And Amortisation 427,190 3,163,562 1,042,911 513,216 (615,960)

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (365,082) 2,075,926 (64,669) (528,387) (1,502,846)

Profit/(Loss) After Tax (423,324) 1,865,436 (366,538) (587,433) (1,468,277)

Net Profit/(Loss) Attributable 
  to Equity Holders  236,709 1,431,870 (351,995) (570,236) (1,454,589)
 
Financial Highlights of Financial Position 
  Items (RM)     

Total Assets   72,596,184 71,024,693 70,038,921 70,360,307 67,765,769

Total Borrowings  6,157,000 3,503,660 1,835,394 2,829,681 2,690,018

Shareholders’ Equity 57,169,597 56,489,467 56,137,472 55,567,236 54,112,647

Financial Indicators

Return of Equity  0.00 0.03   (0.01) (0.01) (0.03)

Return on Total Assets 0.00 0.02 (0.01) (0.01) (0.02)

Gearing Ratio   0.11 0.06 0.03 0.05 0.05

Interest Cover   (0.89) 11.05 0.64 (2.53) (12.26)

Earnings Per Share (sen) 0.28 1.69 (0.42) (0.67) (1.72)

Net Asset Per Share (RM) 0.68 0.67 0.66 0.66 0.64

Gross Dividend Per Share NIL 2.50 NIL NIL NIL

Price Earnings Ratio 85.71 18.93 (95.24) (41.79) (23.55)

Gross Dividend Yield Per Share NA 7.81 NA NA NA

Share Price as at Financial Year End 0.24 0.32 0.40 0.28 0.405
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CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe stAteMent

The Board of Directors of Watta Holding Berhad (“the Company”) recognises the importance of practising good corporate 
governance and is committed to ensuring that the principles and recommendations of the Malaysian Code on Corporate 
Governance 2012 (“MCCG’) are observed and practised as a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities to protect and 
enhance shareholders’ value and financial performance of the Group.

The Board is pleased to report this Statement which sets out the extent of the Group’s compliance with the prescribed 
recommendations of MCCG with exceptions reported herein.  

A. BoARD oF DIReCtoRs

Board Composition and Board Balance 

The Board is primarily entrusted with the overall responsibility over the strategic direction of the Watta and its subsidiaries 
(“Watta Group” or “the Group”) and overseeing the business development, financial performance as well as corporate 
governance practices of the Group.
 
The Board has within its individuals drawn from varied professions and specialisations. The Board is headed by the Group 
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and the existing composition of the Board is as follows:

• Four (4) Executive Directors (including the Group Executive Chairman and CEO);

• Three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors; and 

• One (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director.

The composition of the Board complies with Paragraph 15.02(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). The Board is of the opinion that the interests of shareholders of the 
Company are fairly represented through the current composition of the Board and its size constitutes an effective Board to 
the Company. The wide spectrum of knowledge, skills and experience of the Board members give added strength to the 
leadership which is necessary for the effective stewardship of the Group.

The three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company provide the Board with a good mix of industry-
specific knowledge plus broad business and commercial experience. They provide guidance, unbiased, fully balanced 
and independent views, advice and judgement to many aspects of the Group’s strategy so as to safeguard the interests 
of minority shareholders and to ensure that the highest standards of conduct and integrity were maintained by the Group.

The Board continues with the view that although with the representatives of major shareholders on the Board, its existing 
three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors, with their extensive knowledge and experience would be able to represent 
the investment of the public and the minority shareholders.

The combined function of the Group Executive Chairman and CEO is perceived as appropriate and of benefit to the Group 
for the CEO’s extensive knowledge, skills, experience and familiarity with the Group’s business, industry, products, policies 
and administration matters. As the Group Executive Chairman, Dato’ Lee Foo San (“Dato’ Lee”) is primarily responsible for 
the orderly conduct and effectiveness of the Board. Dato’ Lee is supported by the Executive Directors who are responsible 
for the day-to-day running of the business operations of the Group, implementation of the Group’s business strategies, 
plans and policies as endorsed by the Board.  

Though the role of Chairman and CEO is combined, the Board does not have majority of independent director as 
recommended by the MCCG. However, the Board is of the view that the presence of the three (3) Independent Directors is 
sufficient to provide the necessary checks and balances on the decision making process of the Board. The Independent 
Directors provide independent and objective judgement as well as impartial opinion on Board deliberations and decision 
making and significant contributions of the Independent Directors is evidenced on their participation as members of the 
committees of the Board.

Apart from the above, the Company practices a clear demarcation of responsibilities and a balance of power and authority. 
The Board as a whole has always imposed on itself compliance of all appropriate principles and best practices in respect 
of impartiality, shareholders and stakeholders’ interest and protection and good corporate governance.

Board Responsibilities

The Board retains full and effective control of the Group and has established amongst others, corporate objectives and 
position descriptions including the limits to management’s responsibilities, which the Executive Directors are aware and 
are responsible for meeting. The Board has an understanding of matters reserved to itself for decision, which include 
the overall Group strategy and direction, acquisition and divestment policy, approval for major capital expenditures, 
consideration of significant financial matters and review of the financial and operating performance of the Group.  

The Board has formalised a Board charter which sets out the role, composition and responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors of the Company and key elements of governance principles guiding the business culture and strategic initiatives 
of the Group. The Board reviews its charter periodically to keep abreast with latest changes in regulations and ensure it 
remains consistent with the Board objectives.
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CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe stAteMent (Cont’D)

A. BoARD oF DIReCtoRs (Cont’D)

Board Responsibilities (cont’d)

The Board Charter, Whistle-Blowing Policy and Code of Ethics and Conduct are accessible through the Company’s 
website at www.watta.com.my.

The size and composition of the Board is balanced to reflect the interests of the shareholders in the Company. The Board 
acknowledges that gender diversity is one of the key attributes to an effective and balanced board. In this regard, it is 
committed to having female representation on the Board and the Board currently has one (1) female member. 

The Board believes in equality and equal opportunity to be given to an individual whether for appointment as a director or 
employment within the Group, based on merit and not on gender, age or racial bias.

Board Committees

The Board Committees namely, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Assessment/
Management Committee are entrusted with specific powers and responsibilities to assist the Board in discharging its 
functions within their respective Terms of Reference. The Chairman of the respective Committees report to the Board the 
outcomes and recommendations from the Committees’ meetings and minutes of such Committee meetings will be tabled 
for the Board’s notation. The ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all matters of Board Committees lies with the 
entire Board. 

•	 Audit Committee
Details of the Audit Committee are set out in the Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report.

•	 Nomination Committee
Details of the Nomination Committee are set out on pages 16 and 17 of this Annual Report.

•	 Remuneration  Committee
Details of the Remuneration Committee are set out on pages 17 and 18 of this Annual Report.

•	 Risk Assessment/Management Committee
Details of the Risk Assessment/Management Committee are set out in the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control of this Annual Report.

Reinforce Independence 

The existence of the Independent Directors on the Board itself does not ensure absolute unbiased judgment as it can 
be compromised by familiarity with the other Board members. In this connection, the Board has undertaken an annual 
assessment of the independence of the Independent Directors via disclosed interests and the criteria for assessing their 
independence was set by the Nomination Committee as approved and adopted by the Board. The current Independent 
Directors of the Company have fulfilled the criteria of “independence” as prescribed under Chapter 1 of the MMLR of 
Bursa Securities.

The Board does not have term limit for its Independent Directors and is of the view that the independence of the 
Independent Director should not be determined by their tenure of service. The Board is confident that the Independent 
Directors themselves, having provided all the relevant confirmations on their independence, will be able to determine if 
they can continue to being independent and objective judgement on Board deliberations and decision making.

As recommended by the MCCG, the Board has considered the tenure of two (2) Independent Directors who had exceeded a 
cumulative term of nine (9) years, namely Mr Gan Leng Swee and Hj Ahmad Bin Darus. The approval from the shareholders 
of the Company was obtained at the Twenty First Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) held on 31 March 2016 for the retention 
of Mr Gan Leng Swee and Hj Ahmad Bin Darus as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company notwithstanding 
that both of them have served for a tenure of more than nine (9) years. Based on the assessment, the Board has concluded 
that Mr Gan Leng Swee and Hj Ahmad Bin Darus remain to be independent and recommended that they continue to act 
as Independent Non-Executive Directors based on the following justifications:

i) They have fulfilled the criteria under the definition of Independent Director as stated in the MMLR of Bursa Securities 
and thus, would be able to function as a check and balance, bringing an element of objectivity to the Board;

ii) They have been with the Company for more than nine (9) years and are familiar with the Company’s business 
operations;

iii) They have exercised due care during their tenure as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company and have 
carried out their duties proficiently in the interest of the Company and the shareholders.

The proposed retention will be tabled at the Twenty Second AGM of the Company for shareholders’ approval.
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CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe stAteMent (Cont’D)

A. BoARD oF DIReCtoRs (Cont’D)

time Commitment by Directors 

Although the Board expects its members to be committed to the Company’s affairs and operations, and devote sufficient 
time to carry out their roles and responsibilities for the Group, it does not restrict its members from being Directors of other 
companies. All Directors would immediately notify the Company Secretary and the Company should they accept a new 
directorship in another company.

Save for Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid, the Directors do not have directorship in any other listed companies. 

supply of information

The Board meets on a quarterly basis with additional meetings held whenever necessary. There were five (5) Board of 
Directors’ Meetings held during the financial year ended 30 September 2016 and the details of  attendance are set out as 
follows:-

Name of Directors Attendance

Dato’ Lee Foo San 5 out of 5 meetings
Hj Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz 5 out of 5 meetings
Datin Teoh Lian Tin 4 out of 5 meetings
Gan Leng Swee 5 out of 5 meetings
Hj Ahmad Bin Darus 5 out of 5 meetings
Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid 5 out of 5 meetings
Lee Tak Wing 5 out of 5 meetings
Loo Sooi Guan 5 out of 5 meetings

The Company Secretary was present at all Board of Directors’ meetings held during the financial year ended 30 September 
2016.
 
Prior to Board meetings, the agenda together with relevant documents and information are prepared and distributed 
to all Directors to ensure that Directors have sufficient time to review and be prepared for discussion. The Group 
Executive Director and/or other relevant Board members will provide information and clarification on relevant issues and 
management’s recommendations for deliberation and discussion by the Board prior to decision-making. The minutes or 
record of proceedings of Board meetings are reviewed prior to confirmation by the Chairman of the meeting.

Annual corporate timetable is prepared and circulated to the Board to provide the proposed scheduled date of meetings 
of the Board and Board Committees to enable the Board to plan ahead. The Board is reminded quarterly of the closed 
periods for dealings in the securities of the Company based on the targeted date of announcement of the Group’s interim 
financial results.

Apart from the above, the Board members are updated on the Company’s activities and its operations on a regular basis. 
Management’s review and analysis reports on the Group’s performance will be tabled to the Board every quarter for review. 
All Directors whether as a full board or in their individual capacity have full and unrestricted access to all information of 
the Company on a timely basis in an appropriate form and quality necessary to enable them to discharge their duties and 
responsibilities.

The Board is supported by the Company Secretary pertaining to corporate secretarial matters which include, among others, 
convening of Board and general meetings, preparation of circular resolutions and minutes of meetings, maintenance of 
statutory registers and records, release of announcements to Bursa Securities and Securities Commission Malaysia, and 
advising the Board on compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

All Directors have full and unrestricted access to the advice and services of the external Company Secretary, the external 
auditors, the outsourced internal auditors for advice and services. The Directors are also entitled to seek independent 
professional advice, whenever necessary, at the expense of the Group. The appointment and removal of Company 
Secretary are matters for the Board as a whole.
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CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe stAteMent (Cont’D)

A. BoARD oF DIReCtoRs (Cont’D)

Directors’ training 

The Directors of the Company had attended the following training sessions/seminars/dialogue during the financial year 
ended 30 September 2016:-

  
Name of Directors Date of Training Subject

Dato’ Lee Foo San 27 September 2016 The Annual General Meeting – A Practical Insight and Managing 
Shareholders’ Expectations

Hj Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz 27 September 2016 The Annual General Meeting – A Practical Insight and Managing 
Shareholders’ Expectations

Datin Teoh Lian Tin 27 September 2016 The Annual General Meeting – A Practical Insight and Managing 
Shareholders’ Expectations

Gan Leng Swee 27 September 2016 The Annual General Meeting – A Practical Insight and Managing 
Shareholders’ Expectations

Hj Ahmad Bin Darus  31 October 2016 Fraud Risk Management Workshop

Hj Ahmad bin Khalid 27 September 2016 The Annual General Meeting – A Practical Insight and Managing 
Shareholders’ Expectations

Loo Sooi Guan 27 September 2016 The Annual General Meeting – A Practical Insight and Managing 
Shareholders’ Expectations

The Board acknowledges the fact that continuous education is vital for the Board members to gain insight into the state of 
economy, manufacturing, technological advances in the core business, latest regulatory developments and management 
strategies. 

The Board will evaluate their own training needs on a continuous basis and to determine the relevant programmes, 
seminar and briefings that will enhance their knowledge and enable them to discharge their duties effectively.

During the financial year, Mr Lee Tak Wing did not managed to attend any training due to his health issues and Mr Lee Tak 
Wing has undertaken to attend the trainings required at the coming financial year 2017.

Appointment to the Board

Appointment to the Board is based on the recommendations of the Nomination Committee established by the Board, the 
activities of which are described below.

nomination Committee

The members of the Nomination Committee comprises:-

(a) Gan Leng Swee  Chairman, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

(b) Hj Ahmad Bin Darus  Member, Independent Non-Executive Director

(c) Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid  Member, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

The Nomination Committee’s responsibilities includes assessing the effectiveness of the Board and the contribution of 
each individual Director, the size of the Board and reviewing the mix of skills and experience and other qualities required 
for the Board. The Committee assesses and recommends new nominees for appointment to the Board. 

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that at every annual general meeting, at least one-third (1/3) of the 
directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every three (3) years, and shall be eligible for re-election. Any 
directors appointed during the year shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting and shall be eligible 
for re-election. The Committee will assess and recommend to the Board the re-election of Directors retiring in accordance 
with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Nomination Committee met once during the financial year with full attendance by its members. During the financial 
year ended 30 September 2016, the Nomination Committee carried out the following activities in discharging its duties and 
responsibilities as set out in its terms of reference, a copy of which is available at www.watta.com.my:-

• Reviewed and assessed the existing Board structure, size composition and diversity;

• Reviewed and assessed the effectiveness and performance of the Board and Board Committees;
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CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe stAteMent (Cont’D)

A. BoARD oF DIReCtoRs (Cont’D)

nomination Committee (cont’d)

• Reviewed and assessed the Board’s and individual Director’s required mix of skills, experience and other qualities;

• Determined and reviewed on the Directors standing for re-election and re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) of the Company and recommended them to the Board for consideration; and

• Conducted annual assessment on the independence of the Independent Directors in accordance with the MCCG 
based on established criteria and recommended to the shareholders for approval the retention of the Independent 
Directors who has served for more than nine (9) years at the Company’s AGM. 

The evaluation involves individual Directors and Committee members completing separate performance evaluation sheet 
regarding the process of the Board and its Committee, their effectiveness and contribution of each individual Director. 
These assessments and comments by all Directors were tabled and discussed at the Nomination Committee meeting 
which was then reported to the Board at the Board meeting held thereafter. 

The Nomination Committee was satisfied with the experience, contributions and skill mix of the Directors to enable the 
Board and the Board Committee to discharge their respective duties and responsibilities effectively.

The Board also acknowledges the importance of boardroom diversity in terms of gender, age, nationality as well as 
ethnicity and recognises the benefits of this diversity. The Board is of the view that while promoting boardroom diversity 
is essential, the normal selection criteria based on effective blend of competencies, skills, extensive experience and 
knowledge to strengthen the Board should remain a priority.

B. DIReCtoRs’ ReMUneRAtIon

The objective of the Group is to ensure that the Group attracts and retains Directors of the calibre needed to run the 
Group successfully. The Executive Directors are to be appropriately rewarded giving due regard to the corporate and 
individual performance. In the case of Non-Executive Directors, the level of remuneration reflects the experience and level 
of responsibilities undertaken by the Non-Executive Directors concerned.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is performance related which are if not higher are compatible to the market 
rate in order to attract, motivate and retain them to run the Company. The Company also reimburses reasonable expenses 
incurred by Directors where required, in the course of carrying out their duties as Directors. The determination of 
remuneration packages of Non-Executive Directors should be a matter of the Board as a whole.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three (3) members namely:-

(a) Hj Ahmad Bin Darus  Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

(b) Gan Leng Swee  Member, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

(c) Dato’ Lee Foo San Member, Group Executive Chairman and CEO

The Remuneration Committee is authorised by the Board to establish a formal and transparent procedure for developing 
policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages of individual Directors. The Chairman of the 
Committee may request for a meeting as and when deemed necessary. The remuneration of Directors shall be the ultimate 
responsibility of the full Board after considering the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibility include review and recommend to the Board the framework of executive 
remuneration and its cost and the remuneration package for each Executive Director, taking into account the performance 
of the individual, the inflation price index and information from independent sources on the rates of salary for similar jobs 
in a selected group of comparable companies and benefits-in-kind for the Executive Directors, review and recommend the 
bonus scheme for the Executive Directors depending on various performance measurements of the Group.

The MCCG recommends the Remuneration Committee to consist exclusively or a majority of non-executive directors. The 
Board is of the opinion that the Group Executive Chairman and CEO should be entrusted to carry out the duties of the 
Remuneration Committee in view of his extensive knowledge and experience in the Company’s business operations and 
industry.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the financial year ended 30 September 2016 to inter-alia review and 
considers the annual bonuses and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors.

Directors will abstain from discussion and voting on decisions in respect of their own remuneration. The aggregate annual 
Directors’ fees are to be approved by shareholders at the AGM based on recommendations of the Board.
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CoRPoRAte GoVeRnAnCe stAteMent (Cont’D)

B. DIReCtoRs’ ReMUneRAtIon (Cont’D)

Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

Details of Directors’ remuneration for the financial year ended 30 September 2016 are set out below:-

Remuneration
Executive Directors

(RM)
Non-Executive Directors

(RM)
Total
(RM)

Directors’ fees 168,000 72,000 240,000
Salaries and other emoluments 1,130,468 - 1,130,468
Benefits-in-kind 55,117 - 55,117

Total 1,353,585 72,000 1,425,585
 
The number of Directors whose total remuneration for the financial year ended 30 September 2016 fall within the respective 
bands is as follows:-

Range of remuneration 
Number of Directors

Executive Non-Executive

RM1 to RM50,000 - 4
RM50,001 to RM100,000 - -
RM100,001 to RM150,000 - -
RM150,001 to RM200,000 - -
RM200,001 to RM250,000 1 -
RM250,001 to RM300,000 1 -
RM300,001 to RM350,000 2 -

Total 4 4

C. sHAReHoLDeRs

Dialogue between Company and stakeholders

In recognising the importance of timely dissemination of information to shareholders and other stakeholders, the Board 
is committed to ensuring that the shareholders and other stakeholders are well informed of major developments of the 
Company and the information is communicated to them through the following channels:-

(a) the Annual Report;

(b) the various disclosures and announcements made to Bursa Securities including the quarterly results and annual 
results.

Information relating to the Group can be viewed at the Company’s website at www.watta.com.my.

The annual general meeting is the principal platform for dialogue with shareholders and stakeholders. The Group Executive 
Chairman and Board members as well as the External Auditors of the Company are present to respond to all questions 
raised at the meeting. The outcome of all resolutions proposed at general meetings will be announced to Bursa Securities 
at the end of the meeting day.  

Apart from contacts at general meetings, currently there is no other formal program or schedule of meetings with investors, 
shareholders, stakeholders and the public generally. However, the management has the option of calling for meetings with 
investors/analysts if it deems necessary. Thus far, the management is of the opinion that the existing arrangement has 
been satisfactory.

The Board had identified Mr Gan Leng Swee as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom concerns may 
be conveyed by shareholders and the general public.

In line with the recent amendments to the MMLR of Bursa Securities, the Company shall be conducting poll voting for all 
resolutions set out in the notice of general meetings. In addition, the Company will appoint an independent scrutineer to 
validate the votes at the general meetings.
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D. ACCoUntABILItY AnD AUDIt

Financial reporting

The Directors are responsible to present a true and fair assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in the annual 
financial statements and quarterly reports. The quarterly financial results were reviewed by the Audit Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors prior to the submission to Bursa Securities. 

In addition, the Board is responsible to ensure that the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and approved accounting standards in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of financial year ended 30 September 2016 and of their financial 
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board affirms its overall responsibility for maintaining the Company’s system of internal controls and risk management 
and for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal control systems. The Board has established a 
framework to formulate and review risk management policies and risk strategies. 
 
The Group’s Risk Management and Internal Control Statement is set out in the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control of this Annual Report.

Relationship with Auditors

The Board has established a formal and transparent arrangement for maintaining appropriate relationships with the 
auditors, both external and internal in seeking professional advice and ensuring compliance with appropriate accounting 
standards, where applicable. The Audit Committee met with the internal and external auditors to discuss and review the 
audit plan, audit findings and other relevant reports.

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the suitability and independence of the external auditors on an annual basis. 
In addition, the Audit Committee has received confirmation from the external auditors that they are and have been 
independent throughout the conduct of the audit engagement.  
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ADDItIonAL CoMPLIAnCe InFoRMAtIon

1. UtILIsAtIon oF PRoCeeDs

There were no proceeds raised from any corporate proposals during the financial year ended 30 September 2016.
 

2. MAteRIAL ContRACts

There were no material contracts subsisting at the end of the financial year or entered into since the end of the previous 
financial year by the Company or its subsidiaries, which involved the interest of the Directors and major shareholders other 
than contracts entered into in the normal course of business.

3. AUDIt AnD non-AUDIt Fees

During the financial year ended 30 September 2016, the amount of audit fees and non-audit fees incurred by the Company 
and on a Group basis for services rendered by the external auditors, Messrs UHY or a firm or corporation affiliated to 
Messrs UHY are as follows:-

Company (RM) Group (RM)

Audit services 22,000 69,500
Non-audit services NIL 4,000

4. ReCURRent ReLAteD PARtY tRAnsACtIons oF A ReVenUe oR tRADInG nAtURe (“RRPt”)

The breakdown of the aggregate value of the RRPT conducted pursuant to the shareholders’  mandate obtained at the 
Twenty First Annual General Meeting held on 31 March 2016 is as follows:-

Nature of 
Transaction

Companies in the 
Watta Group involved 
in the RRPT

Related Parties Relationship of the Related Parties
with Watta Group

Actual value 
transacted from
31 March 2016 up
to 31 Dec 2016
(RM)

Purchases of 
airline tickets, tour 
arrangements and 
accommodation 
bookings

•	 Watta Battery 
Industries Sdn 
Bhd (“Watta 
Battery”)

•	 Watta Energy 
(M) Sdn Bhd 
(“Watta Energy”)

•	 Syarikat 
Perniagaan 
Leko Sdn Bhd 
(“Leko”)

Z’tronic Holidays 
Sdn Bhd 
(“Z’tronic”)

•	 Dato’ Lee Foo San, the Group 
Executive Chairman and a Major 
Shareholder of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Z’tronic.

•	 Datin Teoh Lian Tin, the Executive 
Director of Watta, is the spouse of 
Dato’ Lee Foo San.

•	 Lee Fook Sin, the brother of Dato’ Lee 
Foo San, is a shareholder of Watta and 
a Non-Executive Director of both Leko 
and Watta Battery.

•	 Lee Foo Hock, the brother of Dato’ Lee 
Foo San, is a Director of Leko, Watta 
Battery, Watta Energy and Z’tronic.

•	 Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid, a Director of 
Watta, is the Director of Zitron and 
Watta Energy and also a substantial 
shareholder of Z’tronic.

•	 Lee Li Yen is an Alternate Director to 
Dato’ Lee Foo San in Z’tronic. She is 
the sister of Dato’ Lee Foo San.

145,925
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ADDItIonAL CoMPLIAnCe InFoRMAtIon (Cont’D)

Nature of 
Transaction

Companies in the 
Watta Group involved 
in the RRPT

Related Parties Relationship of the Related Parties
with Watta Group

Actual value 
transacted from
31 March 2016 up
to 31 Dec 2016
(RM)

Lease of office 
premises

Watta Holding 
Berhad (“Watta”) 

Zitron Enterprise 
(M) Sdn Bhd 
(“Zitron”)

•	 Dato’ Lee Foo San, the Group 
Executive Chairman and a Major 
Shareholder of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Zitron.

•	 Datin Teoh Lian Tin, the Executive 
Director of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Zitron. She 
is the spouse of Dato’ Lee Foo San.

•	 Lee Fook Sin, the brother of Dato’ Lee 
Foo San, is a shareholder of Watta and 
a Non-Executive Director of both Leko 
and Watta Battery.

•	 Lee Foo Hock, the brother of Dato’ 
Lee Foo San, is a Director of Leko, 
Watta Battery and Watta Energy.

•	 Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid, a Director of 
Watta, is a Director of Zitron and Watta 
Energy.

318,366

Purchase of 
cellular telephones 
and related 
cellular telephone 
accessories

Leko Zitron •	 Dato’ Lee Foo San, the Group 
Executive Chairman and a Major 
Shareholder of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Zitron.

•	 Datin Teoh Lian Tin, the Executive 
Director of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Zitron. She 
is the spouse of Dato’ Lee Foo San.

•	 Lee Fook Sin, the brother of Dato’ Lee 
Foo San, is a shareholder of Watta and 
a Non-Executive Director of both Leko 
and Watta Battery.

•	 Lee Foo Hock, the brother of Dato’ 
Lee Foo San, is a Director of Leko, 
Watta Battery and Watta Energy.

•	 Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid, a Director of 
Watta, is a Director of Zitron and Watta 
Energy.

NIL

Purchase of 
cellular telephones 
and related 
cellular telephone 
accessories

Leko The Hello Station 
(M) Sdn Bhd 
(“Hello Station”)

•	 Dato’ Lee Foo San, the Group 
Executive Chairman and a Major 
Shareholder of Watta, is a substantial 
shareholder of Hello Station.

•	 Datin Teoh Lian Tin, the Executive 
Director of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Hello 
Station. She is the spouse of Dato’ 
Lee Foo San.

•	 Lee Foo Hock, the brother of Dato’ Lee 
Foo San, is a Director of Hello Station.

NIL
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ADDItIonAL CoMPLIAnCe InFoRMAtIon (Cont’D)

Nature of 
Transaction

Companies in the 
Watta Group involved 
in the RRPT

Related Parties Relationship of the Related Parties
with Watta Group

Actual value 
transacted from
31 March 2016 up
to 31 Dec 2016
(RM)

Service 
maintenance fee 
and repair of phone

Mobile Technic 
Sdn Bhd (“Mobile 
Technic”)

Zitron •	 Dato’ Lee Foo San, the Group 
Executive Chairman and a Major 
Shareholder of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Zitron.

•	 Datin Teoh Lian Tin, the Executive 
Director of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Zitron. She 
is the spouse of Dato’ Lee Foo San.

•	 Lee Fook Sin, the brother of Dato’ Lee 
Foo San, is a shareholder of Watta and 
a Non-Executive Director of both Leko 
and Watta Battery.

•	 Lee Foo Hock, the brother of Dato’ 
Lee Foo San, is a Director of Leko, 
Watta Battery and Watta Energy.

•	 Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid, a Director of 
Watta, is a Director of Zitron and Watta 
Energy.

64,490

Purchase of phone 
parts

Mobile Technic Hello Service 
Centre (M) Sdn 
Bhd (“Hello 
Service Centre”)

•	 Dato’ Lee Foo San, the Group 
Executive Chairman and a Major 
Shareholder of Watta, is a substantial 
shareholder of Hello Service Centre.

•	 Datin Teoh Lian Tin, the Executive 
Director of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Hello 
Service Centre. She is the spouse of 
Dato’ Lee Foo San.

•	 Lee Foo Hock, the brother of Dato’ 
Lee Foo San, is a Director of Hello 
Service Centre.

271

Service 
maintenance fee 
and repair of phone

SEMS Services 
Sdn Bhd

Midland Network 
Sdn Bhd 
(“Midland 
Network”)

•	 Dato’ Lee Foo San, the Group 
Executive Chairman and a Major 
Shareholder of Watta, is a Director and 
substantial shareholder of Midland 
Network.

•	 Datin Teoh Lian Tin, the Executive 
Director of Watta, is the spouse of 
Dato’ Lee Foo San.

•	 Lee Foo Hock, the brother of Dato’ Lee 
Foo San, is a Director and shareholder 
of Midland Network.

•	 Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid, a Director of 
Watta, is a Director and shareholder of 
Midland Network.

NIL
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stAteMent on RIsK MAnAGeMent AnD InteRnAL ContRoL

IntRoDUCtIon

Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26 (b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the Board 
of Directors of Watta Holding Berhad is pleased to present the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of the 
Group for the financial year ended 30 September 2016 which has been prepared in accordance with the “Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers.”

ResPonsIBILItY FoR RIsK AnD InteRnAL ContRoL

The Board of Directors recognises the importance of a sound internal control system and effective risk management practices 
to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. The Board also affirms its overall responsibility for the Group’s 
system of internal control and risk management, and for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal control 
system.

In view of the limitations inherent in any internal control system, it is recognised that such system is designed to manage rather 
than eliminate risk. Evaluation and implementation of the system can only provide reasonable assurance of the Group achieving 
its objectives. The system will not provide absolute assurance against any material misstatement or loss.

The Board has received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Group Executive Director that the Group’s risk 
management and internal control system is operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, based on the existing 
risk management and internal control system of the Group.

RIsK MAnAGeMent FRAMeWoRK

The Board regards risk management as an integral part of business operations and in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for 
the Group’s system of internal control and risk management, the Board has established a framework to formulate and review 
risk management policies and procedures and corresponding controls to mitigate the risks.

In ensuring the on-going review process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks affecting the Group, internal 
control procedures with clear lines of accountability and delegated authority have been established through a series of standard 
operating practice manuals for the business units within the Group covering the Battery Segment and Handphone Servicing 
Segment.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors had strengthened their efforts to improve and monitor the effectiveness and 
adequacy of internal control and risk management implementation with regular review and updates through the Risk Assessment 
/ Management Committee (“RAMC”).

The RAMC currently consists of three (3) members, namely:-

(a) Gan Leng Swee  Chairman, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

(b) Hj Ahmad Bin Darus  Member, Independent Non-Executive Director

(c) Dato’ Lee Foo San  Member, Group Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The primary responsibilities and purpose of the RAMC is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities with respect to 
review and monitor the Group’s risk management framework and activities.  

The functions of RAMC shall also include the following:-

(i) Ensuring the process of identifying and documenting principal risks is in place and on an ongoing basis.

(ii) Ascertaining internal competency levels to manage the identified risks.

(iii) Ensuring the implementation of appropriate systems and procedures to manage risks and assigning of accountability.

(iv) Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the Group’s internal control systems.

(v) Taking actions to rectify control failures or weaknesses and determine disciplinary actions for non-compliance, where 
appropriate.

The Chairman of the RAMC may request for a meeting as and when deemed necessary to review the risk exposures and control 
actions and to deal with any other matters within the authority of the committee. The Chairman of the RAMC will report to the 
Audit Committee and Board every quarter its review of the identified key risks and/or new risks for each business units and 
relevant mitigating plans. 

The RAMC has during the financial year reviewed the Group’s quarterly risk management reports with recommendations to 
improve current risk control system to further strengthen the integrity and effectiveness of the internal control mechanism within 
the Group.
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stAteMent on RIsK MAnAGeMent AnD InteRnAL ContRoL (Cont’D)

otHeR KeY eLeMents oF InteRnAL ContRoL

Apart from risk management and internal audit, the other key elements of the Group’s internal control systems are described 
below:-

(i) The battery segment of the Group has set up internal control and operation procedures with clear lines of accountability 
through a series of standard operating practice manuals in conjunction to the ISO 9001: 2008 requirements. Conformance 
to the system and procedures is further ensured by periodic internal quality audit and surveillance audit.

(ii) The handphone servicing segment has set up internal control and operation procedures with clear lines of accountability 
through a series of standard operating practice manuals.

(iii) The Group maintains a formal organisation structure with clearly defined delegation of responsibilities to the management 
executive and business segments, including limits of authority, authorization level for all aspects of the business.

(iv) An annual budget is submitted for Board review and approval. The actual performance of the business segments is 
monitored against budget on a quarterly basis to identify and to address significant variances.

(v) Management accounts and reports are prepared monthly and quarterly, covering financial performance as well as key 
business indicators such as customers’ satisfaction level, sales analysis and operating cost analysis. These performance 
reports are benchmarked against the pre-determined objectives.

(vi) Regular visits to business operation units by members of the Board and the Management team.

(vii) Quarterly review of the Group’s related party transactions by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

InteRnAL AUDIt FUnCtIon 

The Group’s internal audit function is outsourced to an independent professional consultancy firm who provides the Audit 
Committee and the Board with the assurance on the adequacy and integrity of the internal control system of the Group.

The Internal Auditors, performed reviews on key processes within the Group and assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of 
the internal control system. The Audit Committee is kept informed of the audit process, from the approved annual audit plan to 
the audit findings and reporting at the scheduled quarterly meetings, and would thereafter report and make recommendations 
to the Board of Directors. Senior Management is responsible for ensuring that approved corrective actions are taken within the 
stipulated time frame.

The internal audit reviews carried out by the Internal Auditors during the financial year ended 30 September 2016 in accordance 
with the approved internal audit plan are outlined in the Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report 2016.

The Company has incurred approximately RM32,000 for maintaining the outsourced internal audit function for the financial year 
ended 30 September 2016.

WeAKnesses In InteRnAL ContRoLs tHAt ResULt In MAteRIAL Losses

During the financial year under review, nothing has come to the attention of the Board which would result in any material losses, 
contingencies or uncertainties arising from weakness in its internal control system that would require separate disclosure in this 
annual report. Nevertheless, the Board and Management will continue to take proactive measures to strengthen the internal 
control environment within the Group.

ReVIeW oF tHe stAteMent BY eXteRnAL AUDItoRs 

The External Auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for inclusion in this Annual 
Report and their review was performed in accordance with Recommended Practice Guide 5 (RPG5) (Revised), Guidance for 
Auditors on Engagements to Report on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control included in the Annual Report 
issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Based on their review, the External Auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes 
them to believe that the statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing 
and assessing the adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls of the Group.
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AUDIt CoMMIttee RePoRt

The Audit Committee of Watta Holding Berhad is pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for the financial year ended 
30 September 2016.

MeMBeRs 

1. Lee Tak Wing   Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

2. Hj Ahmad Bin Darus  Member, Independent Non-Executive Director

3. Gan Leng Swee  Member, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

sUMMARY oF WoRK DURInG tHe FInAnCIAL YeAR

A total of five (5) Audit Committee meetings were held during the financial year ended 30 September 2016. Details of attendance 
are as follows:-

Name of Directors Attendance
Lee Tak Wing 5 out of 5 meetings
Hj Ahmad Bin Darus 5 out of 5 meetings
Gan Leng Swee 5 out of 5 meetings

During the financial year ended 30 September 2016, the Audit Committee in the discharge of its duties and functions carried 
out the following activities:-

1. Reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial results of the Group and made recommendation to the Board of Directors for 
approval prior to submission to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”). The review is to ensure that the 
quarterly results presents a true and fair view of the Group’s financial positions and were prepared in accordance with 
the requirements of the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standard 134 – Interim Financial Reporting Standard, International 
Accounting Standard 34 – Interim Financial Reporting and Paragraph 9.22 and Part A of Appendix 9B of the Main Market 
Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Securities.

2. Reviewed and made recommendations to the Board of Directors in respect of the annual audited financial statements of 
the Company and the Group with the external auditors for approval prior to submission to Bursa Securities. The review is 
to ensure that the financial statements were prepared in compliance with the regulatory requirements.

3. Reviewed and discussed with the External Auditors on their audit approach, the areas of audit emphasis, reporting and 
deliverables, as well as new developments on accounting standards and regulatory requirements;

4. Reviewed the External Auditors’ audit findings, results and reports. A private discussion with the External Auditors without 
the presence of Executive Directors and Management to discuss any problems/issues arising from the final audit and 
assistance provided by Management to them during the course of audit for financial year ended 30 September 2016.

5. Reviewed and assessed the suitability and independence of the External Auditors in relation to the re-appointment of the 
External Auditors, taking into consideration amongst others, the adequacy of experience and resources of the firm and 
the professional staff assigned to the audit and the relevant criteria prescribed under the MMLR of Bursa Securities before 
recommending to the Board.

6. Reviewed and discussed the proposed audit fees of the External Auditors;

7. Reviewed the recurrent related party transactions to ensure the transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are 
not detrimental to the interest of minority shareholders.

8. Reviewed the internal audit planning memorandum to ensure the adequacy of the scope and resources of the internal 
audit function before recommending to the Board for endorsement.

9. Reviewed the internal audit reports, audit recommendations made and management responses to these recommendations. 
The Internal Auditors monitored the implementation of the Management’s action plan on the outstanding issues through 
follow-up reports to ensure that all key risks and control weaknesses are being properly addressed.

10. Reviewed the Audit Committee Report and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for inclusion in the 2016 
Annual Report.

11. Reviewed and discussed the Risk Assessment and Management Report from the Risk Assessment/Management 
Committee.

12. Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the Related Party Transactions Policies and Procedures.
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AUDIt CoMMIttee RePoRt (Cont’D)

InteRnAL AUDIt FUnCtIon

The internal audit function of the Group has been outsourced to an independent professional consultancy firm which was 
appointed during the financial year with the aim of providing independent and systematic reviews on the systems of internal 
control. The Internal Audit function provides an independent and objective feedback to the Audit Committee and the Board on 
the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of the internal control system within the Group. Throughout the financial year, the 
audit assignments were carried out in accordance with the approved annual internal audit plan.

On quarterly basis, the Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee on their audit findings, their recommendations of the 
corrective actions to be taken by the management together with the management’s responses and action plans in relation 
thereto were deliberated. Periodically, the Internal Auditors will follow up with Management on the implementation of the agreed 
audit recommendations.

During the financial year, there was no material internal control failure reported that would result in any significant loss to the 
Group.

In accordance with the approved internal audit plan, the Internal Auditors had carried out internal audit reviews and reported to 
the Audit Committee on the following processes of the subsidiaries during the financial year under review:

Name of Subsidiary Areas/Processes

SEMS Services Sdn Bhd 
  

 i) Stock Holding Level and Replenishment of Stocks;
 ii) Monitoring of Inventory Movements between the Head Office and the Branch;
 iii) Monitoring of Inventory Movements for Services and Repair Works;
 iv) Issuance of Work Orders for Service & Repair Works;
 v) Billings to Customers for Service & Repair Works; 
 vi) Collections and Reporting of Revenue in General Ledger; and
 vii) Timelines on the Closing of Accounts (for purpose of Goods and Services Tax 

(“GST”) returns).

Watta Battery Industries Sdn Bhd  i) Issuing and approval of Quotations/Contracts;
 ii) Receiving of Customer’s Orders;
 iii) Arrangement of Transporter of delivery of goods;
 iv) Delivery of goods and updating of inventory records;
 v) Issuing of Delivery Orders/Invoices;
 vi) Sales returned and claims from customers;
 vii) Reporting of Revenue and Receivables in the General Ledger; 
 viii) Monitoring of Receivables Aging; and
 ix) Timelines on the Closing of Accounts (for purpose of GST returns).

SEMS Services Sdn Bhd & 
Mobile Technic Sdn Bhd 

 i) Recruitment and Resignation of Staff;
 ii) Payroll;
 iii) Overtime Claims and Other Allowances;
 iv) Staff Attendance; and 
 v) Staff Training.

Syarikat Perniagaan Leko Sdn Bhd Inventory Management
 i) Recording of Inventory Movement;
 ii) Monitoring of Inventory Balances and Stock Level;
 iii) Safekeeping of Inventory;
 iv) Physical Count and Verification;
 v) Handling of Slow Moving and Obsolete Inventories; and
 vi) Review of relevant policies and procedures.

Sales Return & Warranty Claims
 i) Sales returned from customers; and
 ii) Warranty claims from customers.

The Internal Auditors also conducted follow up reviews on status of agreed action plans by Management on previous processes 
of subsidiaries. 
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stAteMent on DIReCtoRs’ ResPonsIBILItY In
PRePARInG tHe FInAnCIAL stAteMents

The Directors are required by the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”) to prepare financial statements for each financial year which 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at the end of the financial year under review and 
their results and cash flows for the financial year then ended. As required by the Act and the Main Market Listing Requirements 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable approved 
accounting standards in Malaysia.

Therefore, in preparing the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the year ended 30 September 2016, the 
Directors have:

•	 adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

•	 made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;

•	 ensured applicable approved accounting standards have been complied with, subject to any material departures being 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

•	 prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and of the Company. The Directors are responsible for taking such 
reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other such 
irregularities.

The above Statement was reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors on 9 January 2017.
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GRoUP stRUCtURe

CORPORATE OFFICE
Watta Holding Berhad (324384-A)
12th Floor, Menara BGI, Plaza Berjaya, Jalan Imbi,
55100 Kuala Lumpur.

OPERATIONS ADDRESSES
AUTOMOTIVE BATTERY DIVISION:
Lot 8, Jalan Satu, Kawasan Perusahaan Balakong 
Cheras Jaya, 43200 Selangor Darul Ehsan 
Tel: 03-9075 1916-9     Fax: 03-9075 6790
Website: http://www.watta.com.my
E-mail: marketing@watta.com.my

SERVICE OF MOBILE PHONE DIVISION:
Suite W-10-21, 10th Floor, Melawangi Business Suite,
Amcorp Trade Centre
No. 18 Jalan Persiaran Barat, 46050 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Tel: 03-7957 2211     Fax: 03-7958 6878
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ACtIVItIes oF CoRPoRAte soCIAL ResPonsIBILItIes

As indicated in page 7 of the Chairman’s Statement, WATTA group is committed to be a responsible corporate citizen by lending 
a helping hand to the community especially for the needy.

The Management and staff hosted a charity dinner for the orphans from Rumah Sayangan Cheras at Subway Restaurant in 
Taman Connaught on 24 September 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for 
the financial year ended 30 September 2016.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are those of investment holding and the provision of management services. 

The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Financial Results

        Group Company
        RM RM

Net loss of the financial year     1,468,277 996,868

Attributable to: 
Owners of the Parent    1,454,589  996,868
Non-controlling interests     13,688 - 

         1,468,277  996,868

Reserves and Provisions

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the 
financial statements.

Dividend

There were no dividends proposed, declared or paid by the Company since the end of the previous financial year. The Board 
of Directors does not recommend any dividend in respect of the current financial year.

Issue of Shares and Debentures

There were no issues of shares or debentures during the financial year.

Options Granted Over Unissued Shares

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year.

Directors 

The Directors in office since the date of the last report are as follows:

Dato’ Lee Foo San
Haji Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz
Datin Teoh Lian Tin
Gan Leng Swee
Haji Ahmad Bin Darus
Lee Tak Wing 
Haji Ahmad Bin Khalid 
Loo Sooi Guan
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)

Directors’ Interests 

The interests and deemed interests in the shares and options over shares of the Company and of its related corporations of 
those who were Directors at financial year end according to the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows:

       Number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
      At    At
      1.10.2015  Bought  Sold  30.9.2016

Interest in the Company    
Direct interest     
Dato’ Lee Foo San    27,707,730   -     -     27,707,730 
Gan Leng Swee    764,058   -     -     764,058 
Loo Sooi Guan    20,200   -     -     20,200 
    
Indirect interest    
Haji Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz 1   3,468,800   -     -     3,468,800 
Haji Ahmad Bin Khalid 1   3,468,800   -     -     3,468,800 
Loo Sooi Guan 2    100   -     -     100

Note:

1 Deemed interest pursuant to section 6A of the Companies Act 1965 by virtue of their interests in United Matrix Sdn. Bhd.

2 Shares held directly by spouse. In accordance with Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965, the interests of the 
spouse/children in the shares of the Company shall be treated as the interest of the Directors.

By virtue of his interests in the shares of the Company, Dato’ Lee Foo San is also deemed to have interests in the shares of all 
its subsidiary companies to the extent the Company has an interest.

None of the other Directors holding office at the end of the financial year had any interest in the ordinary shares of the Company 
or its related corporations during the financial year. 

Directors’ Benefits 

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit 
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors as shown 
in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a 
firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, other than 
certain Directors who have significant financial interests in companies which traded with certain companies in the Group in the 
ordinary course of business as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements. 

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object was to enable 
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body 
corporate.

Other Statutory Information

(a) Before the statements of financial position and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the Group 
and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps:

 (i) to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for 
doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts and there were 
no bad debts to be written off; and

 (ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business including their 
values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company have been written down to an amount 
which they might be expected so to realise. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)

Other Statutory Information (Cont’d)

(b) At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(i) which would render it necessary to write off any bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or

(ii) which would render the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company misleading; or

(iii) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would 
render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading, or

(iv) which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the 
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(c) At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which 
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

(d) In the opinion of the Directors: 

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve 
months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to meet 
its obligations when they fall due;

(ii) the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not substantially affected 
by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature;and 

(iii) there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction 
or event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group and 
of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

Subsequent event

On 30 November 2016, the Company entered into a Sale of Shares Agreement for the acquisition of the remaining 49% of 
the issued and paid-up share capital of Watta Energy (M) Sdn Bhd (WESB) for a total consideration of RM490,000. Upon 
completion of the proposed acquisition, WESB will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. 

Auditors

The Auditors, Messrs UHY, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 9 January 2017 

            
 DATO’ LEE FOO SAN HAJI ARIFFIN BIN ABDUL AZIZ

KUALA LUMPUR
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

STATUTORY  DECLARATION Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

We, the undersigned, being two of the Directors of the Company, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the 
financial statements set out on pages 36 to 74 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysia Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 30 September 2016 and of their financial 
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.

The supplementary information set out in Note 34 to the financial statements on page 75 have been compiled in accordance 
with Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures 
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and 
the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 9 January 2017 

            
 DATO’ LEE FOO SAN HAJI ARIFFIN BIN ABDUL AZIZ

KUALA LUMPUR

I, Haji Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz, being the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of Watta Holding Berhad, do 
solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the financial statements, set out on pages 36 to 
74 are correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the Statutory 
Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the ) 
abovenamed at KUALA LUMPUR in the ) 
Federal Territory on 9 January 2017 ) 
  HAJI ARIFFIN BIN ABDUL AZIZ

Before me,

        
  
  COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF WATTA HOLDING BERHAD
WATTA Holding Berhad

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Watta Holding Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 
30 September 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 36 to 74.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and fair view in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as 
of 30 September 2016 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its 
subsidiary companies of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act. 

(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated with the Company’s 
financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial 
statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.

(c) The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiary companies did not contain any qualification or any adverse 
comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Other Reporting Responsibilities

The supplementary information set out on in Note 34 on page 75 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 
supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised 
Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued 
by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our 
opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the 
directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 
1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

UHY
Firm Number: AF 1411 
Chartered Accountants
CHONG HOU NIAN
Approved Number: 03105/11/2018 J 
Chartered Accountant
KUALA LUMPUR
9 January 2017
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

       Group  Company
      2016  2015  2016  2015
     Note  RM  RM  RM  RM

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4  8,156,787  8,520,647  -    -   
Investment properties 5  19,529,515  19,909,613  -    -   
Investment in subsidiary companies 6   -    -    27,683,658  28,555,888
Goodwill on consolidation 7  4,803,417  4,803,417  -    -
Other investment  8  -    5,000  -    -
Deferred tax assets  9  5,480  5,480  -    -   
       32,495,199  33,244,157  27,683,658  28,555,888
        
Current Assets       
Inventories   10  6,535,933  5,477,125  -    -
Trade receivables  11  5,741,859  6,175,609  -    -
Other receivables  12  590,592  575,416  1,000  1,000
Amount owing by subsidiary companies 13  -    -    1,672,731  1,772,729
Tax recoverable    272,343  367,283  53,560  67,260
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 14  13,523,112  17,186,875 10,254,052  9,857,625 
Cash and bank balances 15  8,606,731  7,333,842  647,136  1,049,902
      35,270,570  37,116,150  12,628,479  12,748,516 
Total Assets     67,765,769  70,360,307  40,312,137  41,304,404

Equity        
        
Share capital   16  42,240,000  42,240,000  42,240,000  42,240,000
Retained profits/ (Accumulated losses)  11,872,647  13,327,236  (2,121,657) (1,124,789)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  54,112,647  55,567,236   40,118,343  41,115,211 
Non-controlling interests   (52,029) (38,341) -    -   
Total Equity     54,060,618  55,528,895  40,118,343  41,115,211
 
Non-Current Liabilities       
 
Finance lease payables 17  74,306  161,467  -    -   
Bank borrowings   18  522,862  601,805  -    -   
Deferred tax liabilities 9  5,218,627  5,492,294  -    -   
       5,815,795  6,255,566  -    -   
        
Current Liabilities       
 
Trade payables  19  2,075,496  2,557,829  -    -   
Other payables  20  3,721,010  3,951,608  193,794  189,193 
Finance lease payables 17  87,161  108,529  -    -   
Bank borrowings   18  2,005,689  1,957,880  -    -   
       7,889,356  8,575,846  193,794  189,193 
Total Liabilities    13,705,151  14,831,412  193,794  189,193 
Total Equity and Liabilities   67,765,769  70,360,307  40,312,137  41,304,404 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

       Group  Company
      2016  2015  2016  2015
     Note  RM  RM  RM  RM

Revenue    21  38,880,608  38,308,018  216,000  216,000 
Cost of sales     (29,894,473) (27,475,571) -    -   
Gross profit     8,986,135  10,832,447  216,000  216,000 
Other income     1,342,088  1,398,010  438,927  381,132 
Administration expenses   (11,717,707) (12,609,242) (1,629,630) (1,000,410)
Finance costs   22  (113,362) (149,602)  -    -   
Loss before taxation 23  (1,502,846) (528,387) (974,703) (403,278)
        
Taxation    24  34,569  (59,046) (22,165) (30,302)
        
Net loss representing total comprehensive      
  income for the financial year   (1,468,277) (587,433) (996,868) (433,580)
        
Loss attributable to:     
Owners of the parent   (1,454,589) (570,236) (996,868) (433,580)
Non-controlling interests   (13,688) (17,197) -  - 
       (1,468,277) (587,433) (996,868) (433,580)

Total comprehensive income attributable to:     
Owners of the parent   (1,454,589) (570,236)   
Non-controlling interests   (13,688) (17,197)
       (1,468,277) (587,433)   
 
Loss per share attributable to equity holders     
  of the parent (sen):     
  Basic    25  (1.72) (0.67) 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS  OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

  Attributable to Owners of the Company 
  Distributable
       Non-
    Share Retained  Controlling Total
    Capital Profits Total Interests Equity
    RM RM RM RM RM

Group      

At 1 October 2014   42,240,000   13,897,472   56,137,472   (21,144)  56,116,328 
      
Net loss for the financial year, 
  representing total income for 
  the financial year  -     (570,236)  (570,236)  (17,197)  (587,433)
      
At 30 September 2015   42,240,000   13,327,236   55,567,236   (38,341)  55,528,895 
      
At 1 October 2015   42,240,000   13,327,236   55,567,236   (38,341)  55,528,895 
      
Net loss for the financial year,
  representing total income for 
  the financial year   -     (1,454,589)  (1,454,589)  (13,688)  (1,468,277)
      
At 30 September 2016   42,240,000   11,872,647   54,112,647   (52,029)  54,060,618 

      Share Accumulated  
      Capital  Losses Total
      RM  RM  RM

Company      
      
At 1 October 2014     42,240,000  (691,209) 41,548,791 
      
Net loss for the financial year, 
  representing total comprehensive
  income for the financial year    - (433,580) (433,580)

At 30 September 2015     42,240,000 (1,124,789) 41,115,211
 
At 1 October 2015     42,240,000 (1,124,789) 41,115,211 

Net loss for the financial year,
  representing total comprehensive
  income for the financial year    - (996,868) (996,868)

At 30 September 2016     42,240,000 (2,121,657) 40,118,343 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

       Group  Company
      2016  2015  2016  2015
      RM  RM  RM  RM

Cash Flows From Operating Activities      
Loss before taxation    (1,502,846) (528,387) (974,703) (403,278)
        
Adjustments for:       
Bad debts recovered   (8,160) (46,649) -    -   
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    393,426  511,904  -    -
Depreciation of investment properties   380,098  380,097  -    -
Impairment on investment in subsidiary companies   -    -    972,228  436,656
Impairment loss on trade receivables   39,282  43,376  -    -
Impairment loss on other receivables   110,240  110,200  -    -
Interest expenses    113,362  149,602  -    - 
Inventories written down   101,563  -    -    -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment    (7,547) (2,839) -    -   
Interest income    (670,715) (618,469) (438,927) (381,132)
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange   (1,080) (82,541)  -    -
Provision of slow moving inventories   170,000  220,500    -    -
Reversal of impairment on inventories   (109,000) -    -    -
Operating loss before working capital changes   (991,377) 136,794 (441,402) (347,754)

Decrease/(Increase) in working capital:      
Inventories     (1,221,371) 726,367 -    -   
Trade receivables    402,628 1,092,930 -    -   
Other receivables    (125,416) 397,656 -    10,500 
Trade payables    (481,253) (381,418)  -    -
Other payables    (230,598) 522,964 4,601  6,814 
Subsidiary companies   - - 99,998    2,600,001 
       (1,656,010) 2,358,499 104,599  2,617,315 
Cash (used in)/generated from operations    (2,647,387) 2,495,293 (336,803) 2,269,561 
        
Interest received     670,715 618,469 438,927  381,132 
Interest paid      (113,362) (149,602) -    -   
Tax refund     264,328 112,261 68,095  61,554
Tax paid      (408,486) (410,594) (76,560) (66,953)
       413,195 170,534 430,462  375,733 

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities   (2,234,192) 2,665,827 93,659 2,645,294 
        
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Additional investment in subsidiary
  company    - - (99,998) - 
Proceed from disposal of property,  
  plant and equipment   7,547  4,133  -    - 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment   (29,566) (69,982) -    -
Proceed from disposal of other investment   5,000 - -    -
Net cash used in investing activities   (17,019) (65,849) (99,998)   -
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       Group  Company
      2016  2015  2016  2015
      RM  RM  RM  RM

Cash Flows From Financing Activities     
Net changes in bankers’ acceptance  39,000 1,231,000 -    - 
Repayment of term loan   (70,134) (71,923) -    -
Repayment of finance lease  payables   (108,529) (164,790) -    -
Placement of deposits not for short-term 
  funding requirement   (5,991) (251,077) -    -
(Increase)/Decrease in fixed deposit pledged  (1,289) 168,713 -    -
Withdrawal of deposits not for short-term 
  funding requirement   242,958 - -    -
Net cash from financing activities   96,015 911,923 -    -
   
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and     
  cash equivalents carried down   (2,155,196) 3,511,901 (6,339) 2,645,294 
Foreign exchange differences   - 1,570 -     -
Cash and cash equivalents at
  beginning of the financial year   24,050,382 20,536,911 10,907,527  8,262,233 
Cash and cash equivalents at
  end of the financial year   21,895,186 24,050,382 10,901,188  10,907,527 
         
Cash and cash equivalents at end       
  of the financial year comprises:      
Cash and bank balances   8,606,731 7,333,842 647,136  1,049,902
Fixed deposits with licensed banks  13,523,112 17,186,875 10,254,052 9,857,625
      22,129,843 24,520,717 10,901,188  10,907,527
 
Less: Fixed deposits pledged with 
           licensed banks  (42,451) (41,162) -    -
Less: Deposits not for short-term 
           funding requirement  (192,206) (429,173) -    -
       21,895,186 24,050,382 10,901,188 10,907,527 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2016  (CONT’D)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the Main Market 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The principal place of business of the Company is at Lot 8, Jalan Satu, Kawasan Perusahaan Balakong, Cheras Jaya, 
43200 Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The registered office of the Company is located at Suite 11.1A, Level 11, Menara Weld, 76, Jalan Raja Chulan, 50200 Kuala 
Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan.

The principal activities of the Company are those of investment holding and the provision of management services. The 
principal activities of its subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 6 to the Financial Statements. There have been no 
significant changes in the nature of these activities of the Company and its subsidiary companies during the financial year. 

2. Basis of Preparation 

(a) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements 
of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. 

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention, 
unless otherwise indicated in the significant accounting policies below.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Group and the Company have not applied the following new MFRSs and amendments to MFRSs that have been 
issued by the MASB but are not yet effective for the Group and the Company: 

Effective dates for financial 
periods beginning on or after

MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 
Amendments to MFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in 

  Joint Operations 
1 January 2016 

Amendments to MFRS 101 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116
  and MFRS 138 

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
  Depreciation and Amortisation 

1 January 2016 

Amendments to MFRS 116
  and MFRS 141

Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 

Amendments to MFRS 127 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle 1 January 2016 
Amendments to MFRS 10, 
  MFRS 12 and MFRS 128

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation 
Exception

1 January 2016 

Amendments to MFRS 107 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 112 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised 

Losses 
1 January 2017

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 – 2016 Cycle:
� Amendments to MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2017
� Amendments to MFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial 

Reporting Standards
1 January 2018

� Amendments to MFRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2018
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in  

July 2014) 
1 January 2018 

Amendments to MFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share based 
Payment Transaction

1 January 2018

Amendments to MFRS 140 Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018
IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 

Consideration
1 January 2018

Amendments to MFRS 4 Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with  
MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

See MFRS 4 paragraphs  
46 and 48

MFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 10  
  and MFRS 128

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor 
and its Associate or Joint Venture

To be announced
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

2. Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)

(a) Statement of compliance (Cont’d)

 The Group and the Company intend to adopt the above MFRSs when they become effective.

 The initial application of the abovementioned MFRSs are not expected to have any significant impacts on the financial 
statements of the Group and the Company except as mentioned below:

 MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014)

 MFRS 9 (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014) replaces earlier versions of MFRS 9 and introduces a package of 
improvements which includes a classification and measurement model, a single forward looking ‘expected loss’ 
impairment model and a substantially reformed approach to hedge accounting. MFRS 9 when effective will replace 
MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

 MFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories 
for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or 
loss. The basis of classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics 
of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profit 
or loss with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income 
without subsequent recycling to profit or loss. There is now a new expected credit losses model that replaces the 
incurred loss impairment model used in MFRS 139. For financial liabilities there were no changes to classification and 
measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities 
designated at fair value through profit or loss. MFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing 
the bright line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged item and hedging 
instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one management actually use for risk management 
purposes. Contemporaneous documentation is still required but is different to that currently prepared under MFRS 
139.

 The adoption of MFRS 9 will result in a change in accounting policy. The Group is currently examining the financial 
impact of adopting MFRS 9.

 MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

 MFRS 15 replaces MFRS 118 Revenue, MFRS 111 Construction Contracts and related IC Interpretations. The 
Group is in the process of assessing the impact of this Standard. The Standard deals with revenue recognition and 
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, 
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. 

 Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use 
and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The core principle in MFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue 
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

 
 MFRS 16 Leases

 MFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede MFRS 117 Leases, introduces a single lessee accounting 
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, 
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under MFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation 
to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest 
on the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest 
portion and presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially 
measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and also includes 
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, 
or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee 
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard, MFRS 117.

 The Directors of the Company will assess the impact of the application of MFRS 16. For the moment, it is not 
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of the application of MFRS 16 until the Company performs 
a detailed review.
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2. Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)

(b) Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s functional currency. 

(c) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
 
 The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the 
future.

 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting 
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next reporting period are set out below: 

 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (Note 4)

 The Group regularly reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on factors such as 
business plan and strategies, expected level of usage and future technological developments. Future results of 
operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors 
mentioned above.  A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment would increase the 
recorded depreciation and decrease the value of property, plant and equipment.

 Impairment of goodwill on consolidation

 The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the 
value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use amount 
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to 
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The key assumptions used 
to determine the value-in-use is disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

 Impairment of investment in subsidiary companies 

 The Company reviews its investment in subsidiary companies when there are indicators of impairment. Impairment 
is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an investment with its recoverable amount. Significant judgement 
is required in determining the recoverable amount. Estimating the recoverable amount requires the Company to 
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to determine a suitable 
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. 

 The carrying amount at the reporting date for investments in subsidiary companies is disclosed in Note 6 to the 
financial statements.

 
 Deferred tax assets

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the unused 
tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Significant 
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based 
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value 
of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. 

 Inventories valuation 

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group estimates the net realisable value of 
inventories based on an assessment of expected sales prices. Demand levels and pricing competition could change 
from time to time. If such factors result in an adverse effect on the Group’s products, the Group might be required to 
reduce the value of its inventories. Details of inventories are disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements.  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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2. Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)

(c) Significant accounting estimates and judgements (Cont’d)

 Impairment of loan and receivables

 The Group assesses at end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable is 
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such as 
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the receivable and default or significant delay in 
payments. 

 Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on 
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amounts at the reporting date 
for loans and receivables are disclosed in Notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements.

 Income taxes

 Judgement is involved in determining the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations 
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. 

 The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be 
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such 
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 
As at 30 September 2016, the Group has tax recoverable of RM272,343 (2015: RM367,283).

3. Significant Accounting Policies

 The Group and the Company apply the significant accounting policies set out below, consistently throughout all periods 
presented in the financial statements unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiary companies

 Subsidiary companies are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group 
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the 
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiary companies are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date 
that control ceases.

 The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred 
for the acquisition of a subsidiary company is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to 
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred 
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in business combination are measured initially 
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on 
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of 
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

 Acquisition-related costs are expensed off in profit or loss as incurred.

 If the business combination is achieved in stages, previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured 
at its acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

 Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instruments and within the scope of 
MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with the changes in 
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, 
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

 Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between Group companies 
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated only if there is no indication of impairment. Where necessary, 
accounting policies of subsidiary companies have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Group.

 In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds 
and their carrying amounts are recognised in profit or loss. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying 
amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. See accounting 
policy Note 3(k) to the financial statements on impairment of non-financial assets.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

(ii) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiary companies without change of control

 Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity 
transactions – that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between 
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the 
subsidiary company is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also 
recorded in equity.

(iii) Disposal of subsidiary companies 

 If the Group loses control of a subsidiary company, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary company, including 
any goodwill, and non-controlling interests are derecognised at their carrying value on the date that control is 
lost. Any remaining investment in the entity is recognised at fair value. The difference between the fair value of 
consideration received and the amounts derecognised and the remaining fair value of the investment is recognised 
as a gain or loss on disposal in profit or loss. Any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income 
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

(iv) Goodwill on consolidation 

 The excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of 
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total consideration transferred, non-controlling 
interest recognised and previously held interest measured at fair value is less than the fair value of the net assets 
of the subsidiary company acquired (ie. a bargain purchase), the gain is recognised in profit or loss. 

 Following the initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill 
is not amortised but instead, it is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequent when there is objective 
evidence that the carrying value may be impaired.  See accounting policy Note 3(k) to the financial statements 
on impairment of non-financial assets.

 
(b) Foreign Currency Transactions

 Transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the functional currency of the respective Group entities using the 
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary items denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value 
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value 
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 
retranslated.

 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the reporting 
date are included in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of 
the Group’s net investment in foreign operation. These are initially taken directly to the foreign currency translation 
reserve within equity until the disposal of the foreign operations, at which time they are recognised in profit or loss. 
Exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the Company’s net investment in foreign operation 
are recognised in profit or loss in the Company’s financial statements or the individual financial statements of the 
foreign operation, as appropriate. 

 Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or 
loss for the reporting period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of 
which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Exchange differences arising from such non-
monetary items are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 
The policy of recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 3(k).

(i) Recognition and measurement

 Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use, cost of replacing components parts 
of the assets, and the present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the assets after their use. 
The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. All other repair 
and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

(i) Recognition and measurement (Cont’d)

 The cost of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business combination is based on fair 
value at acquisition date. The fair value of property is the estimated amount for which a property could be 
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction 
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. 
The fair value of other items of plant and equipment is based on the quoted market prices for similar items.

 When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted 
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

 Property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are 
determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are 
recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent costs

 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and 
its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are 
recognised in the  profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

 Depreciation is recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset to its 
residual value over its estimated useful life. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term 
and their useful lives. Property, plant and equipment under construction are not depreciated until the assets are 
ready for its intended use.

 Property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Leasehold land 38 - 72 years
Buildings 50 years
Office equipment, tools and equipment 5 years
Furniture, fittings and renovation 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 5 years

 The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each reporting date to ensure that the 
amount and method of depreciation reflect the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits 
embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment.

(d) Leases

 The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement 
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent 
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that 
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

As lessee 

(i) Finance Lease

 Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 
as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its 
fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is 
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

 Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between finance charges and reduction 
of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 
charges are recognised as finance costs in the profit or loss. Contingent lease payments are accounted for 
by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is 
confirmed.

 Leasehold land which in substance is a finance lease is classified as a property, plant and equipment or as 
investment property if held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(d) Leases (Cont’d)

As lessee (Cont’d)

(ii) Operating lease 

 Leases, where the Group or the Company does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
are classified as operating leases and, except for property interest held under operating lease, the leased assets 
are not recognised on the statement of financial position. Property interest held under an operating lease, 
which is held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment property and 
measured using fair value model.

 Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense, 
over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the reporting period in which they 
are incurred.

 Leasehold land which in substance is an operating lease is classified as prepaid land lease payments.

As lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are 
classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

(e) Investment properties

 Investment properties are properties which are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income or for 
capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of 
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment properties are measured at cost, including transaction 
costs, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

 The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is 
incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property.

 Investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset to their residual 
values over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual depreciation rates are: 

Leasehold buildings Over the remaining period of the lease 
Leasehold land Over the remaining period of the lease 

 The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date. 

 Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the asset is assessed and written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount. See accounting policy Note 3(k) to the financial statements on impairment of non-financial 
assets.

 An investment property is derecognised on its disposal, or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future 
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property is recognised in profit or loss in the reporting period of retirement or disposal.

 Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment 
property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of 
change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property 
in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use. 

(f) Financial assets

 Financial assets are recognised on the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the 
Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

 Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value. Transaction costs for financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 The Group and the Company classify their financial assets depends on the purpose for which the financial assets 
were acquired at initial recognition, into the following categories.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(f) Financial assets (Cont’d)

(i) Loans and receivables

 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 
months after the end of the reporting period which are presented as non-current assets.

 After initial recognition, financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less impairment losses. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss 
when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

 Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified 
in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or 
management intends to dispose of the assets within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 

 After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from 
changes in fair value of the financial asset are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment 
losses, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items and gains and losses of hedged items 
attributable to hedge risk of fair value hedges which are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a 
reclassification adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised. Interest calculated using the effective 
interest method is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised 
in profit or loss when the Group’s and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

 Investment in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value 
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less impairment loss. 

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the 
period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases 
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Group and the 
Company commit to purchase or sell the asset.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset has 
expired or has been transferred and the Group and the Company have transferred substantially all risks and rewards 
of ownership. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of 
consideration received and any cumulative gains or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised in profit or 
loss.

(g) Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the 
definition of financial liabilities.

 Financial liabilities are recognised on the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Group and the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

 The Group and the Company classify their financial liabilities at initial recognition into the following categories:

(i) Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost

 The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and borrowings.

 Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

 Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities 
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 
reporting date.

 Gains and losses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(g) Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial guarantee contracts

 A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specific payment to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because a specific debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the 
original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

 Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher 
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date and the 
amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

 A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

(h) Offsetting of Financial Instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements of financial 
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

(i) Inventories

 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

 Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

- Trading goods: Costs are determined on first-in-first-out basis.
- Spare parts: Costs are determined on weighted average basis. 

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, bank overdraft and highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank 
overdrafts and pledged deposits.

(k) Impairment of Assets

(i) Non-financial assets 

 The carrying amounts of non-financial assets (except for inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite 
useful lives, or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each period at the same 
time.

 For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets 
or cash-generating units. Subject to operating segment ceiling test, for the purpose of goodwill impairment 
testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which 
impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting 
purposes. The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated 
to a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of 
the combination.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(k) Impairment of Assets (Cont’d)

(i) Non-financial assets (Cont’d) 

 The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of value-in-use and fair value less 
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or  cash-generating unit exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which such impairment loss is recognised directly against any revaluation surplus for the 
asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that 
same asset. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) and then 
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) 
on a pro rata basis.

 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised 
in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that 
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for 
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(ii) Financial assets

 All financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss and investment in subsidiary companies, 
are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or 
more events having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. 

 Financial assets carried at amortised cost

 To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, 
the Group and the Company consider factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial 
difficulties of the receivable and default or significant delay in payments. For certain categories of financial assets, 
such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed 
for impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics. Objective evidence of impairment for 
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group and the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, 
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and observable 
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on receivables.

 If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses 
that have not yet been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying 
amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. Receivables together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no 
realistic prospect of future recovery.

 If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is 
reversed, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed what the carrying amount would 
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of 
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

 Available-for-sale financial assets
 
 Significant financial difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading market 

are considerations to determine whether there is objective evidence that investment securities classified as 
available-for-sale financial assets are impaired. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of investments 
in equity instruments below its cost is also an objective evidence of impairment.

 If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the amount of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss 
and is measured as the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current 
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised. When a decline of fair value of an available-for-sale 
financial asset has been recognised in other comprehensive income, the cumulative loss in other comprehensive 
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. 
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(k) Impairment of Assets (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial assets (Cont’d)

 Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont’d)

 Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in profit or loss in the subsequent 
periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive 
income. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed in profit or loss 
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the 
recognition of the impairment loss in profit or loss.

 Unquoted equity securities carried at cost

 If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business environment where the issuer 
operates, probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer) that an impairment loss on 
financial asset carried at cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between 
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the Group’s share of net assets or the present value of estimated 
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment 
losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.

(l) Share capital

 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and the Company 
after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments. Ordinary shares are recorded at the nominal 
value of shares issued. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 

 Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the period they are approved by the 
Board of Directors except for the final dividend which is subject to approval by the Company’s shareholders.

(m) Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, when 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 
the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 Provisions are reviewed at each end of the reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it 
is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision 
is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

 Any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is 
recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision. The relating 
expense relating to any provision is presented in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income net 
of any reimbursement.

(n) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

 Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised as an expense in the reporting period 
in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group and of the Company. Short term 
accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when services are rendered 
by employees that increase their entitlement to future compensation absences. Short term non-accumulating 
compensated absences such as sick and medical leave are recognised when the absences occur.

 The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is measured as additional amount expected to be 
paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

 As required by law, companies in Malaysia contribute to the state pension scheme, the Employee Provident 
Fund (“EPF”). Such contributions are recognised as an expense in statement of profit or loss and other 
comparehensive income as incurred.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(o) Revenue recognition

 Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received 
or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates.

(i) Goods sold and services rendered

 Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have 
been transferred to the buyer. Revenue from services rendered is recognised based on the value of services 
performed and invoiced to customers during the reporting period.

(ii) Rental income

 Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The aggregate costs of incentives 
provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

(iii) Interest income

 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

(iv) Management fee

 Management fee is recognised on an accrual basis when services are rendered.

(p) Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised 
as part of the cost of the assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
theirs intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. All other borrowing costs are recognised 
in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the 
Group and the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

 The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the 
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for 
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially 
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or completed. 

 Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

(q) Income taxes

 Tax expense in profit or loss comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in profit 
or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income.

 Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the financial year, using tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous financial years.

 Deferred tax is recognised on the liability method for all temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets 
or liabilities in the statements of financial position and their tax base. Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary 
difference arising from the initial recognition of goodwill,  the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction 
which is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax 
is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based 
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

 The measurement of deferred tax is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount 
of the assets and liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax 
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will 
be realised simultaneously.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)

(q) Income taxes (Cont’d)

 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period 
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(r) Segment Reporting

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance 
of the operating segment and make overall strategic decisions. The Group’s operating segments are organised and 
managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing 
a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. 

(s) Contingencies

 Where it is not probable that an inflow or an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot 
be estimated reliably, the asset or the obligation is disclosed as a contingent asset or contingent liability, unless the 
probability of inflow or outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent assets 
or contingent liabilities unless the probability of inflow or outflow of economic benefits is remote. 

4. Property, Plant and Equipment
   
     Office  
   Leasehold  equipment, Furniture, 
   land and Plant and tools and fittings and Motor 
   buildings machinery equipment renovation vehicles Total
   RM RM RM RM RM RM

 Group
 2016       

Cost       
At 1 October 2015  8,404,040  382,781  1,729,911   2,393,655   2,402,676  15,313,063 
Additions  -  -  23,742  5,824  -  29,566
Disposal   -  -  (103,802) -  (97,924) (201,726)
At 30 September 2016  8,404,040  382,781  1,649,851   2,399,479  2,304,752   15,140,903 
         
  
Accumulated depreciation        
At 1 October 2015  574,792  357,397  1,615,113  2,255,453  1,989,661  6,792,416
Charge for the financial year  126,289  3,209  44,613  44,801  174,514  393,426
Disposal   -    -    (103,802) -    (97,924) (201,726)
At 30 September 2016  701,081  360,606  1,555,924  2,300,254  2,066,251  6,984,116
 
Carrying amount      
At 30 September 2016  7,702,959  22,175  93,927  99,225  238,501  8,156,787

Group        
2015        
Cost        
At 1 October 2014  8,404,040  382,781  1,713,734  2,355,933  2,447,016    15,303,504 
Additions  -   -  32,260  37,722  -  69,982 
Disposal   -  -  (16,083) -  (44,340) (60,423)
At 30 September 2015  8,404,040  382,781  1,729,911  2,393,655  2,402,676   15,313,063 
       
Accumulated depreciation        
At 1 October 2014  448,503  354,065  1,569,005  2,196,721  1,771,347   6,339,641 
Charge for the financial year  126,289  3,332  60,897  58,732  262,654  511,904 
Disposal   -  -  (14,789) -    (44,340) (59,129)
At 30 September 2015  574,792  357,397  1,615,113  2,255,453  1,989,661  6,792,416 
       
Carrying amount      
At 30 September 2015  7,829,248  25,384  114,798  138,202  413,015  8,520,647
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

(a) The remaining period of the lease term is 72 years (2015: 73 years).

(b) Included in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are motor vehicles acquired under finance lease with 
carrying amounts of RM220,625 (2015: RM388,640).

(c) Leasehold building with carrying amount of RM1,341,567 (2015: RM1,360,135) of a subsidiary company has been 
pledged to licensed bank as securities for credit facilities granted to a subsidiary company as disclosed in Note 18.

5. Investment Properties

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

At cost   
At beginning/ At end of the financial year     21,430,000  21,430,000 
   
Accumulated depreciation   
At beginning of the financial year     1,520,387  1,140,290 
Charge for the financial year     380,098  380,097 
At end of the financial year     1,900,485  1,520,387 
   
Carrying amount     19,529,515  19,909,613 
   
Fair value      21,430,000  21,430,000 

(a) The rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties amounted to RM605,000 (2015: RM497,000). 
Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties that generated rental income during the financial year 
amounted to RM9,029 (2015: RM12,300).

(b) The remaining period of the lease term range from 38 to 72 years (2015: 39 to 73 years).

(c) Fair value of investment properties was determined based on the valuations performed by an accredited independent 
firm of professional valuers based on sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable land and buildings in 
close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size or option. The fair value is within 
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

(d) The rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties amounted to RM605,000 (2015: RM497,000). 
Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties that generated rental income during the financial year 
amounted to RM9,029 (2015: RM12,300).

(e) The remaining period of the lease term range from 38 to 72 years (2015: 39 to 73 years).

(f) Fair value of investment properties was determined based on the valuations performed by an accredited independent 
firm of professional valuers based on sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable land and buildings in 
close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size or option. The fair value is within 
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 
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6. Investment in Subsidiary Companies

(a) Investment in subsidiary companies

        Company
        2016 2015
        RM RM

In Malaysia   
Unquoted shares, at cost     32,490,682  32,390,684 
Less: Accumulated impairment loss   
At beginning of the financial year     (3,834,796) (3,398,140)
Impairment recognised in profit or loss     (972,228) (436,656)
At end of the financial year     (4,807,024) (3,834,796)
       27,683,658  28,555,888 

 The fair values are within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair values have been derived using the adjusted net 
asset valuation techniques by reference to the fair value of its assets and liabilities. 

 During the financial year, as a result of the unexpected poor performance of Syarikat Perniagaan Leko Sdn Bhd 
(“SPL”), the Company carried out a review of its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount in SPL was estimated 
based on fair value less costs of disposal and was estimated at approximately RM900,000. An impairment loss 
amounting to RM972,228 was recognised during the financial year and as a result the Company’s investment in SPL 
was fully impaired as at 30 September 2016.

 The impairment loss was recognised in administration expenses in the statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income.

(b) Details of the subsidiary companies, all are incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

  Name of company  Effective interest Principal activities
    2016 2015
    % %
  Direct holding:
  Watta Battery Industries Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Distribution of automotive batteries 
         and battery components
  Syarikat Perniagaan Leko Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Marketing and distributing automotive  
         batteries and related products
  Watta Energy (M) Sdn. Bhd.  51 51 Marketing and distribution of 
       telecommunication equipment and 
         related products
  Mobile Technic Sdn. Bhd.  100 100 Servicing of mobile telecommunication 
         products 
  SEMS Services Sdn. Bhd.  100 100 Servicing of mobile telecommunication
         products
 Indirect holding 
 Subsidiary company of Watta Battery
   Industries Sdn. Bhd.   
  Mega Meranti Sdn. Bhd.  100 100 Property investment

On 30 November 2016, the Company entered into a Sale of Shares Agreement for the acquisition of the remaining 
49% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Watta Energy (M) Sdn Bhd (WESB) for a total consideration of 
RM490,000. Upon completion of the proposed acquisition, WESB will become a wholly-owned subsidiary company 
of the Company.
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6. Investment in Subsidiary Companies (Cont’d)

(c) Non-controlling interests 

 The summarised financial information of subsidiary company with material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) is as 
follows:

     Proportion of ownership  Loss allocated Accumulated
     interests and voting rights to non- controlling non-controlling
  Name of company held by non-controlling interests interests interests
      2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
      % % RM RM RM RM

Watta Energy (M) Sdn. Bhd.  49 49  (13,688)  (17,197)  (52,029)  (38,341)
Total non-controlling interests       (52,029)  (38,341)

 The summarised financial information for the subsidiary company that has non-controlling interest that is material to 
the Group is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amount before inter-company 
eliminations.

(i) Statement of financial position

        2016 2015
        RM RM

Total assets     4,793,570  720,281 
Total liabilities     (4,879,753)  (778,529) 
Net liabilities     (86,183) (58,248)

   
(ii) Summarised statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income  
      Revenue      877,800  -   

Loss before taxation     (27,935) (35,096)
Taxation     -    -   
Net loss for the financial year,  representing total comprehensive   
  income for the financial year     (27,935) (35,096)

   
(iii) Summarised statements of cash flows   
 Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities representing net   
          increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    792,680  (316,643)

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the subsidiary company to transfer funds to the Group in the form 
of cash dividends or repayment of loans and advances. 
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7. Goodwill on Consolidation

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

At beginning of the financial year/  At end of the financial year    4,803,417  4,803,417

(a) Impairment test for goodwill on consolidation

 The aggregate carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”) in 
services segment.

 The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on its value in use, determined by discounting the future cash 
flows expected to be generated from the continuing use of the unit and was based on the following key assumptions:

(i) Cash flows were projected based on actual operating results and eight-years business plan. 
(ii) Revenue was projected at anticipated annual revenue growth of approximately 1% to 3% per annum. 
(iii) Expenses were projected at annual increase of approximately 1% to 4% per annum. 
(iv) A pre-tax discount rate of 4.5% was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the unit. The discount rate 

was estimated based on the weighted average cost of capital of the Group plus a reasonable risk premium. 

 The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the industry and 
are based on both external sources and internal sources.

 Management believes that any reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount 
are based would not cause the carrying values to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU. 

8. Other Investment

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Available-for-sale financial assets     
- Unquoted shares in Malaysia     
     
At beginning/ At end of the financial year     -    5,000 

9. Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities

(a) Deferred tax assets

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

At beginning of the financial year     (5,480) (5,517)
Recognised in profit or loss     -    37 
At end of the financial year     (5,480) (5,480)

 This is in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and their 
tax base.
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9. Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (Cont’d)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

At beginning of the financial year     5,492,294  5,633,161 
Recognised in profit or loss     (273,667) (140,867)
At end of the financial year     5,218,627  5,492,294 
   
Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:   
Deferred tax liabilities     5,279,966  5,554,201 
Deferred tax asset     (61,339) (61,907)
       5,218,627  5,492,294

 The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and asset of the Group prior offsetting are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities of the Group: 

      Accelerated Investment
      capital allowances properties Total 
       RM RM RM

At 1 October 2015    907,220  4,646,981  5,554,201 
Recognised in profit or loss    (4,035) (270,200) (274,235)
At 30 September 2016    903,185  4,376,781  5,279,966 
     
At 1 October 2014    959,768  4,734,814  5,694,582 
Recognised in profit or loss    (52,548) (87,833) (140,381)
At 30 September 2015    907,220  4,646,981  5,554,201 

  Deferred tax asset of the Group:

        Unused tax losses
          RM

At 1 October 2015       (61,907)
Recognised in profit or loss      568 
At 30 September 2016       (61,339)
   
At 1 October 2014      (61,421)
Recognised in profit or loss      (486)
At 30 September 2015       (61,907)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following temporary differences:

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Unutilised capital allowances     74,748  78,142 
Unused tax losses     8,596,588  7,217,473 
Others      9,721  11,418 
       8,681,057  7,307,033 

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items as they may not have sufficient taxable profits 
to be used to offset or they have arisen in subsidiary companies that have a recent history of losses. 
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10. Inventories 

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

At cost,     
Trading merchandise     1,439,039  2,007,529 
     
At net realisable value,     
Trading merchandise     5,096,894  3,469,596 
        6,535,933  5,477,125 

Recognised in profit or loss     
Recongnised as cost of sales     26,319,680  22,432,217 
Inventories written down     101,563  -   
Provision of slow moving inventories     170,000  220,500   
Reversal of write-down of inventories     (109,000) -   

11. Trade Receivables

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Trade receivables     5,888,622  6,291,250 
Less: Accumulated impairment loss     (146,763) (115,641)
       5,741,859  6,175,609 

(i) The foreign currency exposure profile is as follows:

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

United States Dollar     172,493  865,801

(ii) Concentration risk

 At the end of the reporting period, approximately RM3,206,196 (2015: RM1,600,093) of the Group’s trade receivables 
were due from 7 (2015: 3) major customers.

(iii) Credit term of trade receivables

 The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 120 days (2015: 30 to 120 days). Other credit terms are 
assessed and approved on a case by case basis.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)



60

WATTA Holding Berhad

11. Trade Receivables (Cont’d)

(iv) Ageing analysis of trade receivables

 The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end of the financial year are as follows:

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM
      

Neither past due nor impaired     4,162,284  3,524,929 
Past due but not impaired:     
  less than 30 days      888,636  1,153,800 
  31 to 60 days     302,311  559,274 
  61 to 90 days      381,112  723,632 
  more than 90 days     7,516  213,974 
       1,579,575  2,650,680 
Impaired      146,763  115,641 
       5,888,622  6,291,250 

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment records and 
mostly are regular customers that have been transacting with the Group.

Movements in impairment during the financial year are as follows:

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

At beginning of the financial year     115,641  118,914 
Impairment recognised in profit or loss     39,282  43,376 
Bad debts recovered     (8,160) (46,649)
At end of the financial year     146,763  115,641 

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors that have 
defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements. 

12. Other Receivables

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Other receivables     
- Related parties     -    22,368 
- Third parties      382,730  223,115 
        382,730  245,483 
Deposits       297,557  302,381 
Prepayments      130,745  137,752 
        811,032  685,616 
Less: Accumulated impairment      (220,440) (110,200)

         590,592  575,416
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12. Other Receivables (Cont’d)

        Company
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Deposits       1,000  1,000 

 Movements in impairment during the financial year are as follows:

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

At beginning of the financial year     110,200  -   
Impairment recognised in profit or loss     110,240  110,200 
At end of the financial year     220,440  110,200 

 Other receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors that are in significant 
financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments.

13. Amount Owing by Subsidiary Companies

 The amount owing by subsidiary companies arose mainly from management fees receivable, dividend receivable, 
advances and expenses paid on behalf, which are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand except an amount 
of RM1,000,000 (2015: RM1,000,000) which bear interest at rate of 4% to 5% (2015: 4%) per annum.

14. Fixed Deposits with Licensed Banks

 Included in the fixed deposits of the Group is an amount of RM42,451 (2015: RM41,162) pledged to licensed banks as 
securities for banking facilities granted to a subsidiary company as disclosed in Note 18.

 The interest rates of deposits during the financial year range from 2.90% to 4.04% (2015: 2.90% to 3.80%) per annum and 
the maturities of deposits are 30 to 365 days (2015: 30 to 365 days) respectively.

15. Cash and Bank Balances

 The foreign currency exposure profile is as follows:

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

United States Dollar     15,182  26,668 

16. Share Capital

       Group/Company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      Number of shares  RM RM

Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each      
Authorised:       
At beginning/ At end of the finncial year   200,000,000  200,000,000 100,000,000  100,000,000 
       
Issued and fully paid      
At 1 October/ At 30 September   84,480,000 84,480,000 42,240,000  42,240,000 

 

 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote 
per share at meetings of the Company. 
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17. Finance Lease Payables

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Minimum lease payments:     
Within one year     119,176  119,197 
Later than one year and not later than two years    50,105  149,248 
Later than two year and not later than five years    -    20,033 
        169,281  288,478 
Less: Future finance charges     (7,814) (18,482)
        161,467  269,996 
     
Present value of minimum lease payment:     
Within one year     87,161  108,529 
Later than one year and not later than two years    37,153  141,834 
Later than two year and not later than five years    37,153  19,633 
        161,467  269,996 

 The Group leases motor vehicle under finance lease (Note 4). At the end of the lease term, the Group has the option to 
acquire the assets at a nominal price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. There are no restrictive covenants imposed 
by the lease agreement and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments. 

 The interest rates charged are ranging from 2.28% to 3.20% (2015: 2.28% to 3.20%) per annum. 

18. Bank Borrowings

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Secured      
Bankers’ acceptance     1,949,000  1,910,000 
Term loan       579,551  649,685 
        2,528,551  2,559,685 
      
Non-current       
Term loan       522,862  601,805 
      
Current      
Bankers’ acceptance     1,949,000  1,910,000 
Term loan       56,689  47,880 
        2,005,689  1,957,880 
        2,528,551  2,559,685

The bankers’ acceptance obtained from a licensed bank of the Group are secured by the following:

(a) pledge of fixed deposits of a subsidiary company as disclosed in Note 14; and
(b) corporate guarantee by the Company.

The term loan of the Group obtained from licensed bank is secured by the following:

(a) charge over the leasehold building of a subsidiary company as disclosed in Note 4; and  
(b) joint and several guarantee by certain Directors of the subsidiary company.
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18. Bank Borrowings (Cont’d)

Maturity of the bank borrowings is as follows:

    Within 1  1 - 2 2 - 5 5 
     year  years  years years Total
    RM RM RM RM RM

 2016
 Bankers’ acceptance   1,949,000 - - - 1,949,000
 Term loan   56,689  59,738  199,190  263,934  579,551
    2,005,689 59,738 199,190 263,934 2,528,551
 2015
 Bankers’ acceptance   1,910,000 - - - 1,910,000
 Term loan   47,880 50,394 159,117 392,294 649,685
    1,957,880 50,394 159,117 392,294 2,559,685

The interest rates per annum are as follows: 

        Group
        2016 2015
        % %

Bankers’ acceptance    3.75 - 4.00 3.87 - 5.00
Term loan      5.25 5.25

19. Trade Payables

 The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 days (2015: 30 to 90 days). Other credit terms are 
assessed and approved on a case by case basis.

20. Other Payables

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Other payables     370,422  404,811 
Accruals       2,760,716  3,323,503 
Deposits       589,872  223,294 
        3,721,010  3,951,608 

21. Revenue

       Group  Company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      RM RM RM RM

Sales of goods   16,774,926  19,301,058  -  - 
Services rendered   22,105,682  19,006,960  -  - 
Management fee receivable from subsidiary 
  companies    -  -  216,000  216,000 
      38,880,608  38,308,018  216,000  216,000 
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22. Finance Costs

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Interest expense on:   
  Bankers’ acceptance     83,411  112,366 
  Finance lease payables     10,668  18,205 
  Term loan      19,283  17,411 
  Others       -    1,620 
        113,362  149,602 

23. Loss before Taxation

 Loss before taxation is derived after charging/(crediting):

       Group  Company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      RM RM RM RM

Auditors’ remuneration     
- Statutory audits   69,000 69,000 20,000  18,000 
- Underprovision in prior year  500 2,790 2,000  3,000 
- Non-audit services   4,000 4,000 -    -   
Bad debts recovered   (8,160) (46,649) -    -   
Depreciation of investment properties   380,098 380,097 -    -   
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  393,426 511,904 -    -   
Directors’ remuneration      
- Executive Directors      
  - Fees     168,000 168,000 72,000  72,000 
  - Salaries and other emoluments    1,130,468 1,132,327 -    -  
  - Benefits-in-kind   55,117 62,566 -    -   
Non-Executive Directors     
  - Fees     72,000 72,000 72,000  72,000 
Directors of subsidiary companies      
- Fees    48,000 48,000  -    -
- Salaries and other emoluments   409,816 409,816 -    -   
Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange     
- Realised    119,423  2,891 -    -   
- Unrealised    (1,080) (82,541)  -    -   
Impairment on  investment in subsidiary companies  -  - 972,228  436,656 
Impairment loss on trade receivables   39,282 43,376 -    -   
Impairment loss on other receivables  110,240 110,200 -    -   
Inventories written down   101,563 - -    -   
Rental expenses      
- A company in which a Director has financial interest 288,000 288,000 288,000  288,000 
- Third party    227,750 256,491 -    -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7,547)  (2,839)  -    -   
Provision of slow moving inventories   170,000 220,500 -    -   
Reversal of impairment on inventories   (109,000) - -    -   
Interest income     
  - Fixed deposits   (648,208) (603,360) (396,427) (341,132)
  - Unit trusts    (22,507) (15,109) -    -   
  - Inter-company balances   - - (42,500) (40,000)
Rental income    (605,000) (497,000) -    -   
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24. Taxation

       Group  Company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      RM RM RM RM

Current income tax      
Current year provision   207,765 150,902 23,000  31,000 
Under/(over) provision in prior year   31,333 48,974 (835) (698)
      239,098 199,876 22,165  30,302 
       
Deferred tax       
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary 
  differences    (199,992) (60,944) -  - 
Effect on opening deferred tax of reduction in 
  Malaysia income tax rate   (72,422) - -  - 
Overprovision in prior year   (1,253) (79,886) -  - 
      (273,667) (140,830) -    -   
Tax expense for the financial year   (34,569) 59,046 22,165  30,302 

 Income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2015: 25%) of the estimated assessable profit for the financial 
year.

 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to loss before taxation at the statutory income tax rate to income tax 
expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:

       Group  Company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      RM RM RM RM

Loss before taxation   (1,502,846) (528,387)  (974,703) (403,278)

Taxation at statutory tax rate of 24% (2015: 25%) (360,683) (132,097) (233,929) (100,820)
Income not subject to tax   (11,730) (13,188) -    -   
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes   245,458 260,670 256,929  131,820 
Deferred tax assets not recognised   329,766 22,800 -    -   
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses   (46,298) (48,227) -    -   
Utilisation of current year capital allowances   5,041 - -    -   
Crystallisation of deferred tax   (153,781) - -    -   
Under/(Over) provision of  current taxation in 
  prior year    31,333 48,974 (835) (698)
Overprovsion of deferred taxation in prior year  (1,253) (79,886) -    -   
Effect on opening deferred tax of reduction in     
  Malaysia income tax rate   (72,422) - -    -   
Tax expense for the financial year  (34,569) 59,046 22,165  30,302

The Group has unused tax losses and unutilised capital allowances of amounting to RM8,852,167 and RM74,748 (2015: 
RM7,465,101 and RM78,142) are available for offset against future taxable profits of the subsidiary companies.

25. Loss Per Share basic and diluted

 The loss per share has been calculated based on the consolidated loss for the financial year attributable to owners of the 
parent of RM1,454,589 (2015: RM570,236) for the Group and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 
during the financial year of 84,480,000 (2015: 84,480,000).
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26. Staff Costs

        Group
        2016 2015
        RM RM
 
 Staff cost (excluding Directors)     5,193,640  5,413,483

Included in the total staff costs above are contributions made to the Employees Provident Fund under a defined contribution 
plan for the Group amounting to RM527,593 (2015: RM516,552). 

27. Related Party Disclosures

(a) Identifying related parties 

 For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group or to the Company 
if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence 
over the party in making financial and operating decision, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the 
party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

 Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly. The key management 
personnel comprise the Directors and management personnel of the Group, having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group entities directly or indirectly.

(b) Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under normal trade terms. The 
significant related party transactions of the Group and of the Company are as follows: 

       Group  Company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      RM RM RM RM

Subsidiary companies
Management fee received/receivable   - - 216,000  216,000 
Interest income   - - 42,500  40,000 
       
A company in which a Director
  has interest
  Rental expenses   288,000 288,000 288,000  288,000 

(c) Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions are disclosed in Notes 12 and 13.

(d) Information regarding compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

       Group  Company
      2016 2015 2016 2015
      RM RM RM RM

Short-term employee benefits   1,883,401 1,892,709 144,000  144,000

28. Segmental Information

 For management purposes, the Group is organised into business segments based on their products and services, and has 
three reportable operating segments as follows:-

Trading Marketing and distribution of automotive batteries and related products

Services Servicing of telecommunication equipment and related products

Investment holding and others Investment holding

 Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about 
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is 
measured consistently with profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
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28. Segmental Information (Cont’d)

 Transactions between segments are carried out on agreed terms between both parties. The effects of such inter-segment 
transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The measurement basis and classification are consistent with those adopted 
in the previous financial year. 

 Segment assets and liabilities
 Segment assets and liabilities information are neither included in the internal management reports nor provided regularly 

to the management. Hence no disclosures are made on segment assets and liabilities.

       Investment Adjustment 
       holding and and 
     Trading Services others elimination Consolidated
     RM RM  RM  RM  RM

2016        
Revenue        
Total external revenue  16,774,926  22,105,682  -    -    38,880,608 
Inter-segment revenue  4,483,209  -    216,000  (4,699,209) -   
Total segment revenue  21,258,135  22,105,682  216,000  (4,699,209) 38,880,608 
         
Results        
Operating result  (1,237,143) 701,375  (455,609) -    (991,377)
Interest income  255,221  19,067  438,927  (42,500) 670,715 
Finance costs   (94,079) (61,783) -    42,500  (113,362)
Depreciation   (470,502) (100,949) (202,073)  -    (773,524)
Other non-cash items  (126,378) (168,920) (972,228) 972,228 (295,298)
Segment result  (1,672,881) 388,790  (1,190,983) 972,228  (1,502,846)
Tax credit/(expense)  95,961  (156,901) 95,509  -    34,569 
(Loss)/Profit for the financial year  (1,576,920) 231,889  (1,095,474) 972,228  (1,468,277)

Other non-cash items      
Bad debts recovered  (8,160) -    -    -    (8,160)
Impairment on investment in  
  subsidiary companies -    -    972,228  (972,228) -   
Impairment on trade receivables  39,282  -    -    -    39,282 
Impairment on other receivables  110,240  -    -    -    110,240 
Inventories written down  101,563  -    -    -    101,563 
Reversal of impairment on 
  inventories   (109,000) -     -    -    (109,000)
Gain on disposal of property, plant 
  and equipment  (7,547) -    -    -    (7,547)
Provision of slow moving 
  inventories   -    170,000  -    - 170,000 
Unrealised gain on foreign 
  exchange   -    (1,080) -    -    (1,080)

Segment assets       
Additions to property, plant and 
  equipment   5,795  23,771  -    -    29,566 
         
Segment liabilities  16,620,591  5,679,676  2,117,510  (10,712,626) 13,705,151 
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28. Segmental Information (Cont’d)

 Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

       Investment Adjustment 
       holding and and 
     Trading Services others elimination Consolidated
     RM RM  RM  RM  RM

2015        
Revenue        
Total external revenue  19,301,058  19,006,960  -    -    38,308,018 
Inter-segment revenue  4,959,851  -    216,000  (5,175,851) -   
Total segment revenue  24,260,909  19,006,960  216,000  (5,175,851) 38,308,018 
         
Results        
Operating result  (168,795) 666,209  (360,620) -    136,794
Interest income  257,130  20,207  381,132  (40,000) 618,469 
Finance costs   (129,843) (59,759) -    40,000  (149,602)
Depreciation   (475,709) (214,219) (202,073) -    (892,001)
Other non-cash items  (14,132) (227,915) (436,656) 436,656     (242,047)
Segment result  (531,349) 184,523  (618,217) 436,656  (528,387)
Tax credit/(expense)  75,707  (152,678) 17,925   -    (59,046)
(Loss)/Profit for the financial year  (455,642) 31,845  (600,292) 436,656  (587,433)

Other non-cash items       
Bad debts recovered  (46,649) -    -    -    (46,649)
Impairment on subsidiary companies  -    -    436,656  (436,656) -   
Impairment on trade receivables  43,376  -    -    -    43,376 
Impairment on other receivables  -    110,200  -    -    110,200 
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, 
  plant and equipment  (3,000) 161  -    -    (2,839)
Provision of slow moving inventories - 220,500 - - 220,500
Unrealised loss/(gain) on foreign 
  exchange   20,405  (102,946) -    -    (82,541)
         
Segment assets       
Additions to property, plant and 
  equipment   21,330  48,652  -    -    69,982 
         
Segment liabilities  13,302,688  5,913,535  2,216,376  (6,601,187) 14,831,412 

 Geographical segments

 No geographical segments information such as segment revenue, segment assets and segment capital expenditure is 
presented as the Group business is entirely carried out in Malaysia.

29. Contingent Liabilities

        Company
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Corporate guarantees given to licensed banks for credit facilities granted 
  to subsidiary companies   
  - Limit of guarantees     8,400,000  10,400,000 
  - Amount utilised     1,949,000  1,910,000 
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30. Financial Instruments

(a) Classification of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortised cost. 
The principal accounting policies in Note 3 describe how the classes of financial instruments are measured, and how 
income and expense, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. 

 The following table analyses the financial assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position by the class of 
financial instruments to which they are assigned, and therefore by the measurement basis:

        Financial 
      Available Loans and liabilities at
      -for-sale receivables amortised cost Total
      RM RM RM RM

Group       
2016       
Financial Assets      
Trade receivables   - 5,741,859 -    5,741,859 
Other receivables   - 459,847 -    459,847 
Fixed deposits with licensed banks   - 13,523,112 -    13,523,112 
Cash and bank balances   - 8,606,731 -    8,606,731 
Total financial assets   - 28,331,549 -    28,331,549 
       
Financial Liabilities      
Trade payables   -    -    2,075,496  2,075,496 
Other payables   -    -    3,721,010  3,721,010 
Finance lease payables   -    -    161,467  161,467 
Bank borrowings   -    -    2,528,551  2,528,551 
Total financial liabilities   -    -    8,486,524  8,486,524 
       
2015       
Financial Assets      
Other investment   5,000  -    -    5,000 
Trade receivables   -    6,175,609  -    6,175,609 
Other receivables   -    437,664  -    437,664 
Fixed deposits with licensed banks  -    17,186,875  -    17,186,875 
Cash and bank balances   -    7,333,842  -    7,333,842 
Total financial assets   5,000  31,133,990  -    31,138,990 

Financial Liabilities      
Trade payables   -    -    2,557,829  2,557,829 
Other payables   -    -    3,951,608  3,951,608 
Finance lease payables   -    -    269,996  269,996 
Bank borrowings   -    -    2,559,685  2,559,685 
Total financial liabilities   -    -    9,339,118  9,339,118 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)



70

WATTA Holding Berhad

30. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(a) Classification of financial instruments (Cont’d)

        Financial 
      Available Loans and liabilities at
      -for-sale receivables amortised cost Total
      RM RM RM RM

Company      
2016       
Financial Assets      
Other receivables   -  1,000  -  1,000 
Amount owing by subsidiary companies  -  1,672,731  -  1,672,731 
Fixed deposits with licensed banks  -  10,254,052  -  10,254,052 
Cash and bank balances   -  647,136  -  647,136 
Total financial assets   -    12,574,919  -    12,574,919 

Financial Liability      
Other payables   -    -    193,794  193,794 
       
2015       
Financial Assets      
Deposits    -  1,000 -  1,000 
Amount owing by subsidiary companies  -  1,772,729 -  1,772,729 
Fixed deposits with licensed banks   -  9,857,625 -  9,857,625 
Cash and bank balances   -  1,049,902 -  1,049,902 
Total financial assets   -    12,681,256  -    12,681,256 
       
Financial Liability      
Other payables   -  -  189,193  189,193

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

 The Group’s financial risk management policy is to ensure that adequate financial resources are available for the 
development of the Group’s operations whilst managing its credit, liquidity, foreign currency and interest rate risks. 
The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and the Group’s policy is not to 
engage in speculative transactions.

 The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and Company’s exposure to the abovementioned 
financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks. 

(i) Credit risk 

 Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from its customers and 
deposits with licensed banks. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans and advances 
to subsidiary companies and financial guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiary 
companies.

 The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and deposit with banks and 
financial institutions with good credit rating. The exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and 
action will be taken for long outstanding debts. 

 The Company provides unsecured loans and advances to subsidiary companies. It also provides unsecured 
financial guarantees to banks for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiary companies. The Company 
monitors on an ongoing basis the results of the subsidiary companies and repayments made by the subsidiary 
companies. 
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30. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

(i) Credit risk (Cont’d) 

 The carrying amounts of the financial assets recorded on the statements of financial position at the end of the 
financial year represent the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk except for financial 
guarantees provided to banks for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiary companies. The Company’s 
maximum exposure in this respect is RM1,949,000 (2015: RM1,910,000) representing the outstanding banking 
facilities of the subsidiary companies as at the end of the reporting period. There was no indication that any 
subsidiary company would default on repayment as at the end of the reporting period. 

 As disclosed in Note 11, approximately RM3,206,196 (2015: RM1,600,093) of the Group’s trade receivables 
were due from 7 (2015: 3) major customers as at the end of the reporting period. The Company has no significant 
concentration of credits risks except for loans to its subsidiary companies where risks of default have been 
assessed to be low.

(ii) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they 
fall. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets 
and liabilities.

 The Group’s funding requirements and liquidity risk are managed with the objective of meeting business 
obligations on a timely basis. The Group finances its liquidity through internally generated cash flows and 
minimises liquidity risk by keeping committed credit lines available.

 The following table analyses the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables 
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on 
which the Group can be required to pay.

   On demand    Total Total
   or within 1 1 to 2 2 to 5 After 5 Contractual Carrying
   year  years  years  years Cash Flows amount 
   RM RM RM RM RM RM

Group       
2016       
Financial Liabilities      
Trade payables  2,075,496  -    -    -    2,075,496  2,075,496 
Other payables  3,721,010  -    -    -    3,721,010  3,721,010 
Finance lease 
  payables  119,176  50,105  -    -    169,281  161,467 
Bank borrowings  2,005,689  59,738  199,190  263,934  2,528,551  2,528,551 
Total financial 
  liabilities  7,921,371  109,843  199,190  263,934  8,494,338  8,486,524 
   
2015      
Financial Liabilities      
Trade payables  2,557,829  -    -    -    2,557,829  2,557,829 
Other payables  3,951,608  -    -    -    3,951,608  3,951,608 
Finance lease 
  payables  119,197  149,248  20,033  -    288,478  269,996 
Bank borrowings  1,957,880  50,394  159,117  392,294  2,559,685  2,559,685 
Total financial 
  liabilities  8,586,514 199,642  179,150  392,294  9,357,600  9,339,118 
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30. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

(ii) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

     On demand or within 1 year Total Contractual Cash Flows/Carrying amount
     RM RM

Company   
2016   
Financial Liability   
Other payables  193,794  193,794 
   
2015   
Financial Liability   
Other payables  189,193  189,193

(c) Market risks

(i) Foreign currency exchange risk
 
 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in currencies other than the 

respective functional currencies of the Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk is primarily United 
States Dollar (USD). 

 The Group has not entered into any derivative instruments for hedging or trading purposes. Where possible, 
the Group will apply natural hedging by selling and purchasing in the same currency. However, the exposure to 
foreign currency risk is monitored from time to time by management.

 The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities are 
disclosed in Notes 11 and 15.

 Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency exchange risk

The Group's exposure to sensitivity of currency risk is insignificant as the transactional currencies are mostly in 
the functional currencies of the respective operating entities. 

(ii) Interest rate risk

 The Group and the Company are exposed to interest rate risk arising primarily from financing through interest 
bearing financial assets and financial liabilities. The Group’s and the Company’s policy is to obtain the financing 
with the most favourable interest rates in the market.

 The Group and the Company constantly monitors its interest rate risk by reviewing its debts portfolio to ensure 
favourable rates are obtained. The Group does not utilise interest swap contracts or other derivative instruments 
for trading or speculative purposes.

   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)



73

Annual Report 2016

30. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(c) Market risks (Cont’d)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

 The carrying amounts of the Group financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk are as follows:

        2016 2015
        RM RM

Group      
Fixed rate instruments      
Financial Asset      
Fixed deposits with licensed banks     13,523,112  17,186,875
      
Financial Liabilities      
Finance lease payables     161,467  269,996 
Bank borrowings     1,949,000  1,910,000 
      2,110,467  2,179,996 
      
Floating rate instruments      
Financial Liability      
Bank borrowings     579,551  649,685
      
Company      
Fixed rate instruments      
Financial Assets      
Fixed deposits with a licensed bank     10,254,052  9,857,625 
Amount owing by subsidiary companies   1,000,000  1,000,000 
      11,254,052  10,857,625 

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group and the Company do not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating rate instruments

A change in 1% interest rate  financial liabilities of the Group which have variable interest rate at the end of the 
financial year would have increase/(decreased) profit before taxation by the amounts shown below. This analysis 
assumes all other variables remain constant.

     Group
     Effect on loss before tax
        2016 2015
        RM RM

Interest rate increase by 1%     (5,796) (6,497)
Interest rate decrease by 1%     5,796  6,497 

(d) Fair value of financial instruments 

Financial instrument at fair value

As the financial assets and liabilities of the Group and the Company are not carried at fair value, the fair value 
hierarchy analysis is not presented.
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30. Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(d) Fair value of financial instruments (Cont’d)

 Financial instrument other than those carried at fair value

 Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of 
fair value

 The carrying amounts of receivables and payables, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings approximate their fair 
value due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments and insignificant impact of discounting.

 Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are not reasonable approximation 
of fair value

 It was not practicable to estimate the fair value of investment in unquoted equity due to the lack of comparable 
quoted prices in an active market and the fair value cannot be reliably measured.

31. Capital Management 

 The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order 
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to 
reduce the cost of capital.

 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

 The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio. The Group’s policy is to maintain a prudent level of gearing ratio that 
complies with debt covenants and regulatory requirements. The gearing ratios at end of the reporting period are as follows:

        2016 2015
        RM RM

Total interest-bearing borrowings    2,528,551  2,559,685 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents     22,129,843  24,520,717 
Total net debts     (19,601,292) (21,961,032)
     
Total equity      54,060,618  55,528,895 
     
Debt to equity ratio    N/A N/A

     

 N/A – Not applicable

 The debt to equity ratio is not applicable as the Group is in a cash position.

 There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.

32. Subsequent event

 On 30 November 2016, the Company entered into a Sale of Shares Agreement for the acquisition of the remaining 49% of 
the issued and paid-up share capital of Watta Energy (M) Sdn Bhd (WESB) for a total consideration of RM490,000. Upon 
completion of the proposed acquisition, WESB will become a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Company. 

33. Date of Authorisation for Issue

 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 September 2016 were authorised 
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 9 January 2017. 
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34. Supplementary Information On The Disclosure Of Realised And Unrealised Profits Or Losses

 The following analysis of realised and unrealised retained profits / (accumulated loss) of the Group and of the Company 
as at the reporting date is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and 
prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or 
Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by 
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

 The retained profits/ (accumulated losses) of the Group and of the Company as at 30 September 2016 is analysed as 
follows:

        2016 2015
        RM RM

Group     
Total retained profits of the Company and its subsidiaries      
- realised       37,419,921  40,048,722 
- unrealised      (5,217,547) (5,405,843)
        32,202,374  34,642,879 
Less: Consolidation adjustments     (20,329,727) (21,315,643)
Total retained profits     11,872,647  13,327,236 
     
Company     
Total accumulated losses of the Company      
- realised       (2,121,657) (1,124,789)

 The disclosure of realised and unrealised retained profits or losses above is solely for complying with the disclosure 
requirements stipulated in the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and should not be applied for any other 
purposes.
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       Date of 
    Tenure   Acquisition Net Book
    (Age of Existing  or Last Value
Location & Details Description Property) Use Land Area Revaluation RM

WATTA BATTERY INDUSTRIES SDN.BHD.
P.T. No. 7620 Mukim of Cheras Corner 99 years Rented 4,571 sq. • 28/9/2012 6,156,446
District of Ulu Langat detached factory leasehold  metres
No. 6 Jalan I, with double expiring
Kaw. Per. Balakong, Cheras Jaya, storey office on 14 May
43200 Selangor D.E.  2088
    (27 years)

P.T. No. 7619 Mukim of Cheras Corner semi- 99 years Rented 2,019 sq. • 28/9/2012 2,980,131
District of Ulu Langat detached factory leasehold  metres
No. 16 Lorong 2A, with double expiring
Kaw. Per. Balakong, Cheras Jaya, storey office on 14 May
43200 Selangor D.E.  2088
    (27 years)

P.T. No. 7608 Mukim of Cheras Corner semi- 99 years Rented 1,600 sq. • 28/9/2012 2,452,304
District of Ulu Langat detached factory leasehold  metres
No. 7 Lorong 2A, with double expiring
Kaw. Per. Balakong, Cheras Jaya, storey office on 14 May
43200 Selangor D.E.  2088
    (27 years)

P.T. No. 7626 Mukim of Cheras Corner 99 years Office 4,347 sq. • 28/9/2012 6,361,395
District of Ulu Langat detached factory leasehold and Store metres
No. 8 Jalan I, with double expiring
Kaw. Per. Balakong, Cheras Jaya, storey office on 14 May
43200 Selangor D.E.  2088
    (27 years)

P.T. No. 10159 Mukim of Sungai Trap Vacant land 60 years Vacant 6,845 sq. • 20/12/2013 666,000
District of Kinta  leasehold  metres
6 1/2 miles Lahat  expiring on
Pusing Main Road  5 May 2062
Ipoh, Perak  (37 years)

MEGA MERANTI SDN. BHD.
H.S. (M) 1011 Vacant land 60 years  Vacant 25,660 sq. • 28/9/2012 7,274,635
P.T. 22538 Mukim Cheras   leasehold  metres
District of Ulu Langat   expiring on 
Balakong,   29 August
Selangor D.E.  2054
    (22 years)

MOBILE TECHNIC SDN. BHD 
Suite W-10-21 to W-10-26 Business 99 years Office 372 sq. ○ 30/6/2008 1,341,567
10th Floor,  building leasehold and Store metres
Melawangi Business Suites,  expiring on
Amcorp Trade Centre,  11
No. 18 Jalan Persiaran Barat,  September
46050 Petaling Jaya  2088
Selangor D.E.  (27 years)

○ indicates date of acquisition
• indicates date of last revaluation
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 DECEMBER 2016

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Share Capital : RM100,000,000/-
Issued and Paid-up share capital : RM42,240,000/-
Class of shares : Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
Voting rights : One (1) vote for each share held 

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 DECEMBER 2016
(as per the Record of Depositors)

Size of Shareholdings  Number of % of Number of % of
      Shareholders  Shareholders  Shares Held Issued Capital
Less than 100    116 11.05 2,732 0.00
100  - 1,000  126 12.00 32,681 0.04
1,001 - 10,000  493 46.95 2,497,767 2.96
10,001 - 100,000  260 24.76 8,308,584 9.83
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares  53 5.05 28,452,216 33.68
5% and above of issued shares  2 0.19 45,186,020 53.49

     Total 1,050 100.00 84,480,000 100.00

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 DECEMBER 2016
(as per the Register of Substantial Shareholders)

        No. of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each held
Name     Direct % Indirect %
Dato’ Lee Foo San   27,707,730 32.80 - -
Surin Bay Resort Sdn Bhd  19,344,022 22.90 - -
Cambridge Asset Holding Limited  - - 19,344,022* 22.90
Hong Choo Hau   - - 19,344,022** 22.90
Chum Mun Cuan   - - 19,344,022** 22.90

  
* Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A(4)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965
** Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A(4)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965 through Cambridge Asset Holding Limited

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 DECEMBER 2016
(as per the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings)

        No. of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each held
Name     Direct % Indirect %
Dato’ Lee Foo San   27,707,730 32.80 - -
Gan Leng Swee   764,058 0.90 - -
Hj Ariffin Bin Abdul Aziz  - - 3,468,800* 4.11
Datin Teoh Lian Tin   - - - -
Hj Ahmad Bin Darus  - - - -
Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid  - - 3,468,800* 4.11
Lee Tak Wing    - - - -
Loo Sooi Guan   20,200 0.02 100** 0.00

* Deemed interested by virtue of Section 6A(4)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965
** Disclosure of interest held by spouse pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 30 DECEMBER 2016 (CONT’D)

30 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
(as per the Record of Depositors)

No. Name of Shareholders     No. of Shares
        Held  %
1.  Dato’ Lee Foo San     26,687,998  31.59
2.  Surin Bay Resort Sdn Bhd     18,498,022  21.90 
3.  CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
      - CIMB Bank for United Matrix Sdn Bhd (MM0649)    3,200,000  3.79
4.  AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd 
      - Pledged Securities Account for Tiow Liu Chung Yun    2,476,000  2.93
5.  Tan Han Chuan     2,142,500  2.54

6.  Affin Hwang Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
      - Pledged Securities Account for Lim Sing (M01)    1,834,666  2.17
7.  Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd    1,459,100 1.73
      - Pledged Securities Account for Yeo Guik Hiang (JBU/UOB)
8.  Lim Wei Ling      1,073,158  1.27
9.  Dato’ Lee Foo San     1,019,732  1.21
10.  Tan Ching Ching     863,400  1.02

11.  Surin Bay Resort Sdn Bhd     846,000  1.00
12.  Gan Leng Swee     764,058  0.90
13.  Chan Wan Moi     763,000  0.90
14.  Lee Tiam Hock @ Lee Tiam Fook     668,000  0.79
15.  AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd     655,400  0.78
      - Pledged Securities Account for Ker Yan Ling (6000927)

16.  Lim Cheng Mee @ Lim Cheng Kah     642,000  0.76
17.  CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd       639,600  0.76
      - CIMB Bank for Yeo Guik Hiang (M78063)
18.  Lim Sing       621,334  0.74
19.  Surinder Singh A/L Wassan Singh     555,000  0.66
20.  AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd    524,200  0.62
      - Pledged Securities Account for Ker Min Choo (8109400)   

21. Goh Ling Yau      520,000 0.62
22.  Lee Kwee Yoong     504,000  0.60
23.  Cheah Wee Hai     420,000  0.50
24. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd 
      - Exempt An for Nomura Securities Co. Ltd (Client AC)   396,000 0.47
25.  Celina Lee Ching Ling    387,400  0.46

26.  Chua Choon Yew    372,900  0.44
27.  JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd    356,700  0.42
      - Pledged Securities Account for Teow Wooi Huat (STA 2)
28. Teoh Ah Lak     282,000 0.33
29.  HLIB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd    276,204  0.33
      - Pledged Securities Account for Chew Chee Seng   
30.  United Matrix Sdn Bhd     268,800 0.32

       Total  69,717,172 82.55
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Number of shares held
CDS Account No.
Contact No.

FORM OF PROXY

I/We  NRIC/Company No.                                                        
                            [Full name in block letters]

of 
[Full address]

being a member of  Watta Holding Berhad, hereby appoint    
                                                                                                                  [Full name in block letters and NRIC No.]

of 
[Full address]

or failing him/her 
[Full name in block letters and NRIC No.]

of 
[Full address]

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the meeting as *my/our proxy to vote for me/us on *my/our behalf at the Twenty Second 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Penthouse @ Level 16, The Federal Kuala Lumpur, 35 Jalan Bukit 
Bintang, 55100 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 31 March 2017 at 9.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.

*My/our Proxy(ies) is/are to vote as indicated below:-
Ordinary Resolutions For Against
Ordinary Business
1. To re-elect the Director, Gan Leng Swee
2. To re-elect the Director, Hj Ahmad Bin Khalid
3. To re-elect the Director, Loo Sooi Guan
4. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees 
5. To re-appoint Messrs UHY as the Company’s Auditors 
6. To approve the retention of Gan Leng Swee as Independent Director. 
7. To approve the retention of Hj Ahmad Bin Darus as Independent Director.
Special Business
8. Authority for Directors to Issue Shares
9. Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate

(Please indicate with an “X” or “√” in the space provided above on how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific instruction is given on voting, the 
proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.)

Dated this       day of   
 
 Signature/Common Seal of Member
Notes:
(1) Only a depositor whose name appears in the Company’s Record of Depositors as at 24 March 2017 shall be regarded as a member and entitled to 

attend, speak and vote at this meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
(2) A member may appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote instead of him/her at the meeting. If the member appoints two (2) proxies, the 

appointment shall be invalid unless he/she specifies the proportion of his/her holdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy may but need not 
be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

(3) Where a member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, it may appoint up to two (2) 
proxies in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

(4) Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 which 
holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) securities account (“Omnibus Account”), there is no limit to the 
number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each Omnibus Account it holds.

(5) The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the appointer 
is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

(6) The original instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy 
of that power or authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Suite 11.1A, Level 11, Menara Weld, 76 Jalan Raja Chulan, 
50200 Kuala Lumpur not less than twenty-four (24) hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting.

(7) The Personal Data Protection Act 2010, which regulates the processing of personal data in commercial transactions, applies to the Company. By 
providing to us your personal data which may include your name, contact details and mailing address, you hereby consent, agree and authorise 
the processing and/ or disclosure of any personal data of or relating to you for the purposes of issuing the notice of this meeting and convening 
the meeting, including but not limited to preparation and compilation of documents and other matters, whether or not supplied by you. You further 
confirm to have obtained the consent, agreement and authorisation of all persons whose personal data you have disclosed and/ or processed in 
connection with the foregoing.
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The Company Secretary
WATTA HOLDING BERHAD (324384-A)

Suite 11.1A, Level 11, Menara Weld 
76 Jalan Raja Chulan
50200 Kuala Lumpur

STAMP
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